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United States

Securities and Exchange Commission
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

Quarterly Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 193

For the quarterly period ended: September 28, 2013

O Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) bthe Securities Exchange Act of 193

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 001-31410

COTT CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaefr)

CANADA 98-0154711
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (IRS Employer
Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)

6525 VISCOUNT ROAD
MISSISSAUGA, ONTARIO

5519 WEST IDLEWILD AVE L4V 1H6
TAMPA, FLORIDA 33634
(Address of principal executive offices (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area codg(905) 672-1900 and (813) 313-1800

Indicate by check mark whether the registranth@s filed all reports required to be filed by Sexti3 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mof(ah$or such shorter period that the registrans vemjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementsie past 90 days. Ye&l No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lasmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥ateb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted untsio Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of tiapter) during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the regiigtwvas required to submit and post such filed)es No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlezge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, accelerated filer, or a smaller
reporting company. See the definitions of “largeederated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “small@porting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act



Large accelerated file Accelerated filel O
Non-accelerated file [0  (do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar [
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExgje Act). Yes[ No

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of ehtitedssuer’s classes of common stock, as ofdtest practicable date.

Class Outstanding at October 28, 201
Common Stock, no par value per sh 94,226,045 share
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Iltem 1. Financial Statements

Cott Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share and pbare amounts)

Unaudited

Revenue, ne
Cost of sale!

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative exper

Loss on disposal of property, plant &
equipmen

Restructuring

Operating income

Other income, ne
Interest expense, n

Income before income taxe
Income tax expens
Net income

Less: Net income attributable to non-
controlling interest:

Net income attributed to Cott Corporation

Net income per common share attributed tc
Cott Corporation
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average outstanding share
(thousands) attributed to Cott
Corporation

Basic
Diluted

Dividends declared per share

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofelf@msolidated financial statements.

For the Three Months Ended

PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

For the Nine Months Ended

September 28, 201

September 29, 201 September 28, 201

September 29, 201

$ 543.: $ 583.¢ $ 1,612. $ 1,733.c
478.: 510.€ 1,414.. 1,504.f
65.C 73.2 198.( 228.¢
37.¢ 43.¢ 120.€ 134.2
1.1 0.8 1.4 1.7
— — 2.C —
26.C 28.€ 73.1 92.¢
0.7) (1.5) (0.4) 2.2)
13.2 13.1 39.4 40.€
13.2 17.C 34.7 54.2
0.1 1.2 K 5.5
$ 13.2 $ 15.€ $ 32.2 $ 48.¢
1.2 1.2 3. 3.4
$ 12.C $ 14.F $ 28. $ 45.F
$ 0.17 $ 0.1% $ 0.3¢ $ 0.4¢
$ 0.17 $ 0.1% $ 0.3¢ $ 0.4¢
94,23t 94,48¢ 94,92: 94,46:
94,77: 95,59¢ 95,75t 95,59:
$ 0.0¢ $ — $ 0.1¢ $ —
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Cott Corporation
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensiveeome
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited
For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
September 28, 201 September 29, 201 September 28, 201 September 29, 201
Net income $ 13.2 $ 15.¢ $ 32.4 $ 48.¢
Other comprehensive income (los
Currency translation adjustme 12.C 12.t (4.9 13t
Pension benefit plan, net of t1 (0.7) 0.1 0.2 (0.2
Unrealized loss on derivative
instruments, net of ta2 0.7 — (0.1) (0.9
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 11.¢ 12.€ (4.€) 13.1
Comprehensive income $ 25.1 $ 28.4 $ 27.¢ $ 62.(
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to
nor-controlling interest: 1.2 1.2 3.6 3.2
Comprehensive income attributed to Cotl
Corporation $ 23.¢ $ 27.2 $ 23.¢ $ 58.¢

1 Net of the effect of nil and $0.2 million tax expenfor the three and nine months ended Septembh@028, respectively, and net of 1
effect of $0.1 million and $0.2 million tax experfee the three and nine months ended Septemb&2, respectively

2 Net of the effect of nil tax benefit for the thraed nine months ended September 28, 2013, resplgctand net of the effect of a nil a
$0.1 million tax benefit for the three and nine rienended September 29, 2012, respecti

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofelmmsolidated financial statements.
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Cott Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share amounts)

Unaudited

ASSETS
Current assett
Cash & cash equivalen

Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $5.1 (& &f December 29, 201

Income taxes recoverak
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as

Total current assets

Property, plant & equipment, n
Goodwill

Intangibles and other assets,
Deferred income taxe

Other tax receivabl

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Current maturities of lor-term debt
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt
Deferred income taxe
Other lon¢-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

Capital stock, no pe 94,226,045 (December 29, 2C- 95,371,484) shares issu

Additional paic-in-capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive |

Total Cott Corporation equity
Non-controlling interest:

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofelmmsolidated financial statements.

September 28, 201

$ 125.¢
254.¢

0.7

215.¢

23.1

619.¢

490.1
140.¢
303.¢
5.
1.2

$ 1,560.

$ SaS
259.7

263.¢

602.¢
48.1
23.7

937.¢

392.7
43.
193.(
(17.0
612.¢
10.C

622.€

December 29, 201

$ 179.¢
199.«

1.2

224.¢

20.Z

625.]

490.¢
130.:
315.¢
3.2
0.S

$ 1,565.¢

$ 1.¢
287.1

289.¢

601.¢
39.1
12.5

943.(

397.¢
40.2
186.(
(12.9)
611.¢
11.1

622.¢
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Cott Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited

Operating Activities
Net income
Depreciation & amortizatio
Amortization of financing fee
Shar-based compensation expel
Increase in deferred income ta:
Gain on bargain purcha
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm
Other nor-cash item:

Change in operating assets and liabilities, netcgisition:

Accounts receivabl

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other as
Other asset

Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Income taxes recoverak

Net cash provided by operating activit

Investing Activities
Acquisition, net of cash acquirt
Additions to property, plant & equipme
Additions to intangibles and other ass
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipn
Proceeds from insurance recovel

Net cash used in investing activiti

Financing Activities
Payments of lor-term debi
Borrowings under ABL
Payments under AB
Distributions to no-controlling interest:
Common shares repurchased and canc
Financing fee:
Dividends to shareholde
Net cash used in financing activiti

Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢
Net increase (decrease) in cash & cash equivalel
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of perio

Cash & cash equivalents, end of period

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow information:
Cash paid for intere:
Cash (received) paid for income taxes,

Supplemental Nor-cash Investing and Financing Activities:
Deferred consideratic

For the Three Months Ended

For the Nine Months Ended

September 28, 201 September 29, 201

September 28, 201

September 29, 201

$ 13.2 $ 15.¢ $ 322 $ 48.¢
25.1 24.7 iz 72.%

0.7 0.€ 2.2 2.¢

1.1 1.2 3.6 3.5

0.3 0.€ 1.6 4.€

— — — (0.9)

1.1 0.€ 1.4 1.7

— (1.4) 0.2 (0.8)

19. 15.C (38.6) (36.5)

26.€ 17.1 15.¢ (5.9)

— 0.4 (2.0 (5.5)

6.1 (0.2) 6.C 0.7

(6.0) (22.1) (34.9 (38.9)

0.1 5.2 0.4 6.8

87.4 58.( 62.¢ 53.(

(4.7) (4.7 (11.9) (9.7)

(10.2) (13.2) (44.7) (50.€)

(2.2) 1.0 (4.0 (4.7)

0.2 1.2 0.2 2

— 1.7 0.4 1.7

(16.9) (15.9) (59.9) (61.0)

(0.€) (0.2) (20.2) (2.9)

— — — 24.F

— — — (24.5)

(2.2) (1.9 (5.0) (3.3

(4.5 — (12.9) (0.3)

(0.2) (1.2) (0.2) (1.2)
(5.9 — (16.7) —

(12.9 (3.9 (54.9) (7.6)

1.3 2.2 (2.3) 2.8

59.C 41.( (53.6) (12.9)

66. 47.1 179.4 100.¢

$ 125.€ $ 88.1 $ 125.¢ $ 88.1
$ 15¢ $ 156 $ 410 $ 41.:
$ (0.2 $ 05 $ 01 $ 0.¢
$ — % — 3 51 $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofelmmsolidated financial statements.
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Cott Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Equity

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share amounts)

Unaudited

Balance at
December 31, 2011

Common shares issued —

Director¢ share awar
Common shares
repurchase:
Share-based
compensatiol
Distributions to non-
controlling interest:
Comprehensive incorr
Currency translatio
adjustmen
Pension benefit
plan, net of ta;
Unrealized loss on
derivative
instruments, net
of tax
Net income
Balance at
September 29, 2012

Balance at
December 29, 2012

Common shares issuec
Director¢ share awar

Common shares
repurchased and
cancellec

Common shares issuec
Time-based RSU

Share-based
compensatiol

Dividend paymen

Distributions to non-
controlling interest:

Comprehensive incorr

Currency translatio
adjustmen

Pension benefit
plan, net of ta;

Unrealized loss on
derivative
instruments, net
of tax

Net income

Balance at
September 28, 2013

Cott Corporation Equity

Number of Accumulated

Common Other Non-
Shares Common Treasury Additional Paid- Retained Comprehensive  Controlling Total
(In thousands)  (In thousands) Shares Shares in-Capital Earnings Loss Interests Equity
95,10: 674 $ 395.¢ 21 $ 42.€ $144.] (247 $ 124 $568.c
96 — — 0.7 — — — 0.7
(35) (0.2) — — (0.1) — — (0.3
— — — 2.8 — — — 2.6
— — — — — — (3.3 (3.9
— — — — — 13.7 (0.2) 13:E
— — — — — (0.1) — (0.1)
_ — — — — (0.3 — (0.3
— — — — 45k — 3.4 48.€
95,16: 674 $ 395.7 21 $ 46.1 $189.f (1149 $ 12.7 $630.1
95,37: $ 397.¢ — 3 40.4 $186.( (12.4) $ 11.1 $622.¢
87 — — 0.8 — — — 0.6
(1,24¢) (5.2) — — (4.9) — — (10.0)
16 0.1 — (0.2) — — — —
— — — 2.8 — — — 2.6
— — — — (16.7) — — (16.7)
— — — — — (5.00 (5.0
— — — — — (4.€) — (4.€)
— — — — — 0.2 — 0.2
— — — — — (0.1) — (0.1)
— — — — 28.t — 3.€ 32.4
94,22¢ $ 392.7 — 3 43.¢ $193.C (17.0 $  10.C $622.¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofef@msolidated financial statements.
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Cott Corporation
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Unaudited

Note 1 — Business and Recent Accounting Pronouncentge
Description of Busines:

Cott Corporation, together with its consolidatetsdiaries (“Cott,” “the Company,” “our Company,Cbtt Corporation,” “we,” “us,or
“our”), is one of the world’s largest producershafverages on behalf of retailers, brand ownergd@idbutors. Our product lines include
carbonated soft drinks (“CSDs”), 100% shelf stgbiee and juice-based products, clear, still aratldng flavored waters, energy products,
sports products, new age beverages and ready+tk-tas, as well as alcoholic beverages for braviekos.

Basis of Presentatiol

The accompanying interim unaudited consolidatedrfamal statements have been prepared in accoraéticthe instructions to
Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X and ac@rdance with U.S. generally accepted accountimgiples (“GAAP”) for interim
financial reporting. Accordingly, they do not indeiall information and notes presented in the antarssolidated financial statements in
conformity with U.S. GAAP. In the opinion of managent, all adjustments (consisting of normal recuyidccruals) considered necessary for
a fair statement of our results of operations lierinterim periods reported and of our financialdition as of the date of the interim balance
sheet have been included. This Quarterly RepoRarm 10-Q should be read in conjunction with thewsat audited consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes in our AnnuabiiRep Form 10-K for the year ended December 2822The accounting policies used
in these interim consolidated financial statemangsconsistent with those used in the annual citzet financial statements.

The presentation of these interim consolidatedniing statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP regsi management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoeptsted in the consolidated financial statementsaatompanying notes.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Update ASU 2013-02 — Comprehensive Income (Tofit B2porting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Acdated Other Comprehensive
Income

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (“FASB”) amended its guidance regardingitiiermation provided
in relation to the amounts reclassified out of aalated other comprehensive income. The amendndentst change the current
requirements for reporting net income or other cahpnsive income in financial statements. Howether amendments require an entity to
provide information about the amounts reclassifiatiof accumulated other comprehensive income bypoment. In addition, an entity is
required to present, either on the face of thestaht where net income is presented or in the psigsificant amounts reclassified out of
accumulated other comprehensive income by the cégpdine items of net income but only if the amobteclassified is required under U.S.
GAAP to be reclassified to net income in its enifi@ the same reporting period. For other amoths are not required under U.S. GAAP to
be reclassified in their entirety to net incomegatity is required to cross-reference to othecldsures required under U.S. GAAP that
provide additional detail about those amounts.tdlic entities, the amendments are effective prospely for reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2012. We have adopted this go&Jaand the required disclosure is set forth iteNd.

Note 2 — Acquisitions

During June 2013, our United Kingdom (“U.K.”) refiog segment acquired 100 percent of the shareatafiCooke Bros. Holdings
Limited, which includes the subsidiary compgnigiyﬁso Soft Drinks Limited and Mr. Freeze (Européhlted (together, “Calypso Soft
purchase price for the acquisition of Calypso ®wihks (the “Calypso Soft Drinks Acquisition”) w&i.2.1 million, which includes
approximately $7 million paid at closing, deferpad/ments of approximately $2.3 million and $3.0liomil to be paid on the first and second
anniversary of the closing date of the Calypso Boifiks Acquisition, respectively. The closing pagmhwas funded from available cash.
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The total consideration paid by us in the Calypsfi Brinks Acquisition, subject to final working p#al adjustments, is summarized below:

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Cash $7C
Deferred consideration 5.1
Total consideratiol $12.1

* Principal amount of $5.3 million discounted to k@doon the first and second anniversary of the detigm date

Our primary reasons for the Calypso Soft Drinks éisijfion were to expand Cott’s product portfoliadaanhance our customer offering
and growth prospects.

The Calypso Soft Drinks Acquisition is being accmehfor as a business combination which, among dltiegs, requires that assets
acquired and liabilities assumed be measured atabguisition date fair values. Identified intabigi assets, goodwill and property, plant and
equipment are recorded at their estimated fairesaper preliminary valuations and may change basedte final valuation results including,
for example, the process of physically validatingdl assets. The results of operations of Calypgb®inks have been included in our
operating results beginning as of the acquisitiate dWe allocated the purchase price of the CalgamsbDrinks Acquisition to tangible asst
liabilities and identifiable intangible assets aicgd based on their estimated fair values. The #xoéthe purchase price over the aggregate
fair values was recorded as goodwill. The fair eadissigned to identifiable intangible assets aequiras based on estimates and assumption
made by management. Intangible assets are amottsteg a method that reflects the pattern in wieicbnomic benefits of the intangible
asset are consumed using a straight-line amougizatiethod.

The following table summarizes the estimated atiooeof the purchase price to the fair value ofdlssets acquired and liabilities
assumed in connection with the Calypso Soft Drifskguisition. The allocation of the purchase priedased on a preliminary valuation that
is expected to be completed in the fourth quat@043. Any adjustment may affect the total purehpsce and value of goodwill.

(in millions of U.S. dollars) Acquired Value
Cash $ 0.t
Accounts receivabl 15.1
Inventory 7.5
Prepaid expenses and other as 0.€
Property, plant and equipme 9.7
Goodwill 10.t
Intangibles and other assi 14.¢
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit (14.7
Shareholder loar (1.6)
Deferred tax liabilities (4.7
Other lon¢-term liabilities (26.2)
Total $ 12.1

The Company recognized $1.6 million of acquisitielated costs associated with the Calypso Softkricquisition that were
expensed during the nine month period ended Septe?d 2013. These costs are included in the gelljaneral, and administrative exper
of our Consolidated Statements of Operations i @nce with ASC 805, “Business Combinations.”

9
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Intangible Asset

In our preliminary determination of the fair valokthe intangible assets, we considered, among @dlotors, the best use of acquired
assets, analysis of historical financial perforngand estimates of future performance of Calyp$b®ink’s products. The estimated fair
values of identified intangible assets were catedlaonsidering market participant expectationswsidg an income approach and estimates
and assumptions provided by Calypso Soft Drinkshaggement, as well as our management. The folloteiblg sets forth the components of
identified intangible assets associated with thiy@&@ Soft Drinks Acquisition and their estimatedighted average useful lives:

Estimated Estimated
Fair Market
Useful
(in millions of U.S. dollars) Value Life
Customer relationships $ 10.5 15 year
Trademarks and trade nan 3.C 20 year.
Non-competition agreemen 1.3 5 years
Total $ 14.¢

Customer relationships represent future projeatgdnue that will be derived from sales to existingtomers of Calypso Soft Drinks.

Trademarks and trade names represent the futupecped cost savings associated with the premiunmbaaudd image obtained as a re
of owning the trademark or trade name as opposetttining the benefit of the trademark or tradeadhrough a royalty or rental fee.

In conjunction with the closing of the Calypso Sbftnks Acquisition, certain key employees of CagSoft Drinks executed non-
competition agreements, which prevent those empbff®m competing with us in the specified restdcterritories for a period of time after
the acquisition date. The value of the Calypso Boiftks business could be diminished without thesecompetition agreements.

Goodwill

The principal factor that resulted in recognitidrgoodwill was that the purchase price for the @aty Soft Drinks Acquisition was
based in part on cash flow projections assumingetiaction of administration costs and the intégredf acquired customers and products
into our operations, which is of greater value tbara standalone basis.

Selected Financial Data

The following unaudited financial information fdret three months and sixteen weeks ended Septe@b2023 represents the activity
of Calypso Soft Drinks that has been combined withoperations as of the date of acquisition.

For the Three Months For the Sixteen Week:
(in millions of U.S. dollars) Ended September 28, 20! Ended September 28, 20!
Revenue $ 15.7 $ 19.€
Net income 0.€ 0.7

On August 17, 2010, we completed the acquisitiosudiistantially all of the assets and liabilitieCtiffstar Corporation (“Cliffstar”)
and its affiliated companies for approximately $80&illion in cash, $14.0 million in deferred comsiation payable in equal installments
over three years and contingent consideration db$b5.0 million (the “Cliffstar Acquisition”). Té first $15.0 million of the contingent
consideration was paid upon the achievement ofstoifes in certain expansion projects in 2010. €hsainder of the contingent
consideration was to be calculated based on thewahent of certain performance measures duringigsbel year ended January 1, 2011.

In 2011, the seller of Cliffstar then raised certabjections to the performance measures useddolage the contingent consideration,
and the parties commenced the dispute resolutiahamsm provided for in the asset purchase agreieiaring 2011, Cott made interim
payments to the seller equal to $29.6 million, whi@s net of a $4.7 million refund due to Cott aruded $0.9 million in settlement of
certain of the seller’'s objections to the calcaatof the contingent consideration. The seller&nab for an additional $12.1 million in
contingent consideration were submitted to bindirgjtration pursuant to the asset purchase agregeandrfavorably resolved by payment by
Cott in February 2013 of approximately $0.6 million

10
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Note 3 — Restructuring

We implement restructuring programs from time todithat are designed to improve operating effecége and lower costs. When we
implement these programs, we incur various chargekiding severance and other employment relabstsc During June 2013, we
implemented one such program (the “2013 Restrumjufian”),which consisted primarily of headcount reductidas:. the nine months end
September 28, 2013, we incurred charges of appairi;n$2.0 million related primarily to employeauadancy costs.

The following table summarizes restructuring charfge the nine-month period ended September 283:201

September 2¢
(in millions of U.S. dollars 2013
North America $ 1.C
United Kingdom 0.7
Mexico 0.3
Total $ 2.C

Note 4 — Share-Based Compensation

The table below summarizes the share-based contpansapense for the three and nine months endpte®der 28, 2013 and
September 29, 2012, respectively. This share-bes@pensation expense was recorded in selling, gkererd administrative expenses in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations. As usedwbéip“Performance-based RSUs” mean restrictedeshaits with performance-based
vesting granted under the Company’s 2010 Equitgritige Plan (the “2010 Equity Incentive Plan”) anAnded and Restated Equity
Incentive Plan (as defined below), as the caselmayii) “Time-based RSUs” mean restricted shaiiésumith time-based vesting granted
under the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan or AmendedRestated Equity Incentive Plan, as the case mafiilpéStock options” mean non-
qualified stock options granted under the AmendediRestated Equity Incentive Plan, the 2010 Equitgntive Plan, or the Restated 1986
Common Share Option Plan (the “1986 Option Plaas)the case may be, and (iv) “Directors’ share divaeans common shares issued in
consideration of the annual board retainer feeotomanagement members of our board of directorsruhé 2010 Equity Incentive Plan or
Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan, asahe may be.

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
(in millions of U.S. dollars September 28, 201 September 29, 201 September 28, 201 September 29, 201
Stock options $ 0.2 $ 0.1 $ 0.€ $ 0.2
Director¢ share awart — — 0.8 0.7
Performanc-based RSU 0.3 0.2 0.7 04
Time-based RSU 0.€ 1.C 1.t 2.1
Total $ 1.1 $ 1.3 $ 3.€ $ 3.5

11
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As of September 28, 2013, the unrecognized shaseebeompensation expense and years we expecboigniee the future compensation
expense were as follows:

Unrecognized shar-basec Weighted average yeal

compensation expense as expected to recognize
(in millions of U.S. dollars, except yea of September 28, 2013 compensation
Stock options $ 1.¢ 2.C
Performanc-based RSU 2.8 1.¢
Time-based RSU 4.1 1.¢
Total $ 8.€

Stock option activity for the nine months endedt8eyber 28, 2013 was as follows:

Weighted averag

Shares exercise price
(in thousands (Canadian $
Balance at December 29, 20 46€ $ 7.2¢
Awarded 39z 9.3¢€
Exercisec — —
Forfeited or expirel — —
Outstanding at September 28, 2( 86C $ 8.28
Exercisable at September 28, 2( 12t $ 9.4¢

During the nine months ended September 28, 20¥&m@nce-based RSU and Time-based RSU activityasdsllows:

Number of Number of
Performance- Time-basec

(in thousands of share based RSUs RSUs
Balance at December 29, 20 82t 52¢
Awarded 247 382
Issued — (15)
Forfeited (26) (37)
Outstanding at September 28, 2( 1,04¢ 85¢

On February 14, 2013, our board of directors adbpteamendment and restatement of the 2010 Equdgntive Plan (the “Amended
and Restated Equity Plan”), pursuant to which ®®02Equity Incentive Plan was amended and restatemong other things, increase the
number of shares that may be issued under thetpld?, 000,000 shares and to provide that the nuwitshares available for issuance will be
reduced 2.0 shares for each share issued pursuarifull-value” award (i.e. an award other thanogaion or stock appreciation right) after
the effective date of the amendment and restatembetAmended and Restated Equity Plan was appioyébtt's shareowners on April Z
2013.

Certain outstanding stock options were granted witde1986 Option Plan. Our board of directors teated the 1986 Option Plan as of
February 23, 2011. In connection with the termorabf the 1986 Option Plan, outstanding option$ eghtinue in accordance with the terms
of the 1986 Option Plan until exercised, forfeitederminated, as applicable. No further award$vélgranted under the 1986 Option Plan.
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Average Canadian to U.S. Dollar Exchange Rate fohe Nine Months Ended September 28, 2013

The weighted-average exercise prices for optiorikignNote 4 are disclosed in Canadian dollars. tabée below represents the average
Canadian dollar to U.S. dollar exchange rate ferrtine months ended September 28, 2013:

For the Nine Months Endec
September 28, 201.
Average exchange rate $ 0.97¢

Note 5 — Income Taxes

Income tax expense was $2.3 million on pretax ire@m$34.7 million for the nine months ended Sefien?8, 2013, as compared to
income tax expense of $5.5 million on pretax incah®54.4 million for the nine months ended Septenitd, 2012. The year to date income
tax expense was reduced as a result of lower phetare relative to the comparable prior year pkrio

Note 6 — Net Income Per Common Share

Basic net income per common share is computed\bglidg net income by the weighted-average numbeoaimon shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted net income per commoarslis calculated using the weighted-average nuwib@mmon shares outstanding
adjusted to include the effect, if dilutive, of theercise of in-the-money stock options, Perfornealngsed RSUs and Time-based RSUs.

A reconciliation of the denominators of the basid diluted net income per common share computat#oas follows:

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

(in thousands of share September 28, 201 September 29, 201 September 28, 201 September 29, 201
Weighted average number of shares

outstandin¢— basic 94,23t 94,48t 94,92: 94,46
Dilutive effect of Stock option 53 32 53 32
Dilutive effect of Performance-based

RSUs 167 51 28¢ 43
Dilutive effect of Timebased RSU 317 1,027 497 1,05t
Adjusted weighted average number of

shares outstandir— diluted 94,77 95,59¢ 95,75 95,59!

At September 28, 2013, we excluded 442,131 (Semegfh 2012 — 392,479) stock options from the caatmn of diluted net income
per share because the options’ exercise price veageg than the average market price of the comshares. Shares purchased on the open
market and held by independent trusts are categgbas treasury shares under applicable accountieg. We excluded 674,397 treasury
shares held in various trusts in the calculatiohasic and diluted earnings per share for the miaeths ended September 29, 2012.

Note 7 — Segment Reporting

Our product lines include CSDs, 100% shelf stahileejand juice-based products, clear, still andidipg flavored waters, energy
products, sports products, new age beverageseaadg-to-drink teas, as well as alcoholic beverdgeBrand owners. Our business operates
through five reporting segments: North America (@bhincludes our U.S. operating segment and Canpela@ating segment), U.K. (which
includes our United Kingdom reporting unit and @antinental European reporting unit), Mexico, Rogabwn International (“RCI”"and All
Other. The primary measures used in evaluatingeporting segments are revenues, operating inctosg)( and additions to property, plant
and equipment, which have been included as patiosegment disclosures listed below.
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(in millions of U.S. dollars

For the Three Months Ended September 28, 201
External revenu?

Depreciation and amortizatic

Operating income (los!

Additions to property, plant & equipme

For the Nine Months Ended September 28, 201
External revenul

Depreciation and amortizatic

Operating income (lost

Additions to property, plant & equipme

As of September 28, 201
Property, plant & equipmel
Goodwill

Intangibles and other assi
Total asset?

North United

America  Kingdom Mexico RCI All Other Total
$ 383 $142¢ $ T7E $ 9F $— $ 543.
20.€ 3.6 0.t — — 25.1
14.€ 95 (12) 3.1 — 26.C
9.C 1.2 — — — 10.2
$1,194.¢ $368.. $22.¢ $27.( $— $1,612:
62.€ 10.: 1.t — — 74.7
49.2 18.€ (1.6 7.4 — 73.7
33.¢€ 9.t 1.2 — — 447
$ 371! $108.° $ 9¢ $— $ — $ 490.1
124.¢ 11.C — 4.t — 140.2
275.¢ 27.t — 0.2 — 303.€
1,195.¢ 323.% 25.z 15.1 0.¢ 1,560.¢

1 Intersegment revenue between North America amather reporting segments was $5.6 million and&fwillion for the three and nine

months ended September 28, 2013, respecti

2 Excludes intersegment receivables, investmentsates receivable

(in millions of U.S. dollars

For the Three Months Ended September 29, 201
External revenu?

Depreciation and amortizatic

Operating income (los!

Additions to property, plant & equipme

For the Nine Months Ended September 29, 201
External revenul

Depreciation and amortizatic

Operating income (lost

Additions to property, plant & equipme

As of December 29, 201
Property, plant & equipmel
Goodwill

Intangibles and other assi
Total asset?

North United
America  Kingdom  Mexico RCI All Other Total
$ 439.. $125:% $ 9.7 $ 9.: $— $ 583.¢
21.1 3.2 04 — — 24.7
18.¢ 76 (1.0 2¢ — 28.€
10.C 1.7 1.t — — 13.2
$1,323.. $356.. $29.C $25.1 $—  $1,733:
61.: 9.€ 1.2 — — 72.2
67.4 21.t (3.2 7.1 — 92.¢
39.C 9.6 1. — — 50.€
$ 382. $ 995 $9: $— $ — $ 490.¢
125.¢ — — 4.t — 130.:
301.] 13.€ 0.4 — — 315.¢
1,246. 273.¢ 28.1 14.1 3.2 1,565.¢

1 Intersegment revenue between North America amather reporting segments was $4.9 million andG8llion for the three and nine

months ended September 29, 2012, respecti

2 Excludes intersegment receivables, investmentsates receivable

A significant portion of our revenue is concentdbite a small number of customers. For the nine iehded September 28, 2013,
sales to Walmart accounted for 29.9% of our taaénues (September 29, 2012 — 31.3%), 35.9% dflorth America reporting segment
revenues (September 29, 2012 — 36.3%), 14.1% df/drreporting segment revenues (September 22 2015.4%), and 9.5% of our

Mexico reporting segment revenues (September 22 2®1.7%).
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Credit risk arises from the potential default afustomer in meeting its financial obligations to @sncentrations of credit exposure r
arise with a group of customers that have simit@nemic characteristics or that are located insdrae geographic region. The ability of si
customers to meet obligations would be similarfgeted by changing economic, political or otherditions. We are not currently aware of
any facts that would create a material credit risk.

Revenues are attributed to operating segments loaisdek location of the customer. Revenues by tipgraegment were as follows:

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. dollars September 28, 201 September 29, 201 September 28, 201 September 29, 201
United States $ 344.: $ 388.( $ 1,066.¢ $ 1,169.(
Canade 50.2 63.2 159.¢ 190.:
United Kingdom 142.¢ 125.t 368.2 356.2
Mexico 7.5 9.7 22.€ 29.C
RCI 8.3 ©.2 27.C 2511
Elimination? (11.2) (11.9) (32.1) (36.2)

$ 543. $ 583.¢ $ 1,612.4 $ 1,733.¢

1 Represents intersegment revenue among our amesggments, of which $5.6 million and $14.8 milliepresents intersegment
revenue between the North America reporting segmeatour other operating segments for the threenarelmonths ended
September 28, 2013, respectively, compared todéli®n and $13.0 million for the three and nine mtizts ended September 29, 2012,
respectively
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Revenues by product category were as follows:

For the Three Months Ended September 28, 201

North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenut
Carbonated soft drink $ 14871 $ 467 $ 24 $— $ 197.-
Juice 117.¢ 11.2 0.1 0.t 129.2
Concentratt 2.9 0.t — 7.1 10.t
All other products 114.¢ 84.t 5.C 1.9 206.:
Total $ 3831 $142¢ $ 7.E $9EF $ 5430
For the Nine Months Ended September 28, 201
North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenus
Carbonated soft drink $ 4566 $119.«. $ 9€ $02 $ 585.¢
Juice 376.¢ 19.¢ 0.1 1.¢ 398.i
Concentratt 8.8 1.7 — 21.2 31.7
All other products 352.¢ 227.2 12.€ 3.7 596.2
Total $1,194.¢ $368.2 $22.€6 $27.C $1,612.
For the Three Months Ended September 29, 201
North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenus
Carbonated soft drink $ 182 $ 431 $ 51 $023 $230¢
Juice 133.7 3.7 0.8 04 138.1
Concentratt 3.3 0.t — 8.5 12.:
All other products 120.( 78.2 4.2 0.1 202.¢
Total $ 4390 $ 1255 $ 9.7 $ 9.7 $ 583
For the Nine Months Ended September 29, 201
North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenut
Carbonated soft drink $ 533 $121¢ $164 $02 $ 671t
Juice 406.¢ 10.t 0.7 1.1 419.2
Concentratt 9.€ 1. — 23.€ 35.C
All other products 373.C 222.] 11.€ 0.1 607.4
Total $1,323.0 $356.. $29.C $25.1 $1,733.
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Property, plant and equipment, net by operatingngeqg as of September 28, 2013 and December 29,284 2s follows:

(in millions of U.S. dollars September 28, 201 December 29, 201
United State: $ 324.¢ $ 333.i
Canade 46.7 48.4
United Kingdom 108. 99.t
Mexico 9.¢ 9.2
Total $ 490.] $ 490.¢

Note 8 — Inventories

The following table summarizes inventories as gft8mber 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012:

(in millions of U.S. dollars September 28, 201 December 29, 201
Raw materials $ 78.4 $ 93.4
Finished good 115t 111.€
Other 21.t 19.€
Total $ 215.¢ $ 224.¢

Note 9 — Intangibles and Other Assets

The following table summarizes intangibles and p#ssets as of September 28, 2013:

September 28, 201.
Accumulated

(in millions of U.S. dollars Cost Amortization Net

Intangibles

Not subject to amortizatio

Rights $ 45.C $ = $ 45.C

Subject to amortizatio

Customer relationshif $378.t $ 160.¢ $217.7

Trademarks 32.4 24.¢€ 7.5

Information technolog 49.1 32.7 16.4

Other 13.2 10.4 2.8
473.% 228.¢ 244.¢
518.7 228.¢ 289.<

Other Assets

Financing cost $ 25.7 $ 13.2 $ 12t

Deposits 1.1 — 1.1

Other 0.c 0.2 0.€

27.7 13.5 14.2
Total Intangibles & Other Assets $545.¢ $  242: $303.¢

Our only intangible asset with an indefinite litdates to the 2001 acquisition of intellectual gy from Royal Crown Company, Inc.,
including the right to manufacture our concentratath all related inventions, processes, technielgechnical and manufacturing
information, know-how and the use of the Royal Qndwand outside of North America and Mexico (théghRs”).

Amortization expense of intangible and other asa@ts $8.6 million and $25.9 million for the threedanine months ended
September 28, 2013, respectively, compared to®8l®n and $26.6 million for the comparable priggar periods.
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The estimated amortization expense for intangibles the next five years is:

Note 10 — Debt

(in millions of U.S. dollars

Remainder of 201 $ 10.C
2014 30.€
2015 28.4
2016 25.C
2017 21.1
Thereaftel 129.1

$244.4

Our total debt as of September 28, 2013 and Dece2®012 was as follows:

(in millions of U.S. dollars

September 28, 201

December 29, 201

8.375% senior notes due in 2017 $ 215.( $ 215.(
8.125% senior notes due in 2C 375.( 375.(
GE obligation 10.7 9.¢
Other capital lease 5.€ 4.€
Other deb 1.8 .8
Total debt 608.] 605.¢
Less: Current det
GE obligation- current maturitie! 1.¢ 0.¢
Other capital lease current maturitie: 1.4 0.€
Other deb- current maturitie: 0.€ 0.2
Total current debt 3.¢ 1.¢
Long-term debt before discou 604.2 603.¢
Less discount on 8.375% no! (1.9 (2.7
Total long-term debt $ 602.< $ 601.¢

1 Qur 8.375% senior notes were issued at a discduné#@85% on November 13, 20C

Asse-Based Lending Credit Facility

On March 31, 2008, we entered into a credit agre¢mieh JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. as Agent thatteckan asset-based lending
credit facility (the “ABL facility”) to provide firancing for our North America, U.K. and Mexico refpog segments. In connection with the
Cliffstar Acquisition, we refinanced the ABL fadilion August 17, 2010 to, among other things, mtevor the Cliffstar Acquisition, the
issuance of $375.0 million of 8.125% senior nokeg aire due on September 1, 2018 (the “2018 Nogsl)the application of net proceeds
therefrom, the underwritten public offering of 1803000 common shares at a price of $5.67 per stmat¢he application of net proceeds
therefrom and to increase the amount availabl®édorowings to $275.0 million. We drew down a pantiaf the indebtedness under the ABL
facility in order to fund the Cliffstar AcquisitioWe incurred $5.4 million of financing fees in cattion with the refinancing of the ABL
facility.

On July 19, 2012, we amended the ABL facility tmamg other things, extend the maturity date toeeiftuly 19, 2017 or, if we have t
redeemed, repurchased or refinanced our 8.375%rseoties due 2017 (the “2017 Notes”) by May 1, 20d&y 15, 2017. We incurred $1.2
million of financing fees in connection with the andment of the ABL facility.

On October 22, 2013, we amended the ABL facilityatmong other things, (1) provide for an increasthé lenders’ commitments
under the ABL facility to $300 million, as well &mcrease to the accordion feature, which permit®uscrease the lenders’ commitments
under the ABL facility to $350 million, subject tertain conditions, (2) extend the maturity datéhearliest of (i) October 22, 2018,

(i) May 15, 2017, if we have not redeemed, repasg or refinanced the 2017 Notes by May 1, 20d{iioMarch 1, 2018, if we have not
redeemed, repurchased or refinanced the 2018 gtEsbruary 15, 2018, and (3) provide for gredeilbility under certain covenants. We
incurred approximately $0.6 million of financingefein connection with the amendment of the ABLIfgci
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The financing fees incurred in connection with tenancing of the ABL facility on August 17, 2018lpng with the financing fees
incurred in connection with the amendment of thd A&cility on July 19, 2012 and on October 22, 204& being amortized using the
straight line method over the duration of the aneehdBL facility.

As of September 28, 2013, we had no outstandingtimgs under the ABL facility. The commitment feas 0.375% per annum of
unused commitment, which, taking into account $iilion of letters of credit, was $239.0 million aéSeptember 28, 2013.

8.375% Senior Notes due in 2017

On November 13, 2009, we issued the 2017 Notes2Uh& Notes were issued at a $3.1 million discotine issuer of the 2017 Notes
is our wholly-owned U.S. subsidiary Cott Beverafyes, and we and most of our U.S., Canadian and sulsidiaries guarantee the 2017
Notes. The interest on the 2017 Notes is payalhé-annually on May 18'and November 1% of each year.

We incurred $5.1 million of financing fees in cortien with the 2017 Notes. The financing fees am@ amortized using the effective
interest method over an eight-year period, whighesents the duration of the 2017 Notes.

On September 30, 2013, Cott Beverages Inc. nofifietls Fargo Bank, National Association, as suamessstee to HSBC Bank USA,
N.A. under the indenture dated as of November 0892joverning the 2017 Notes (‘Indenture”),that Cott Beverages Inc. will, pursuan
the optional redemption provisions contained inltidenture, redeem U.S. $200.0 million aggregaitecipral amount of the 2017 Notes on
November 15, 2013 at 104.118% of par. The redemptitl include approximately $8 million in premiupayments as well as approximat
$4 million in deferred financing fee and discounhaiges.

8.125% Senior Notes due in 2018

On August 17, 2010, we issued the 2018 Notes. 3$eer of the 2018 Notes is our wholly-owned U.Bsaliary Cott Beverages Inc.,
and we and most of our U.S., Canadian and U.K.idialsees guarantee the 2018 Notes. The interesh®2018 Notes is payable semi-
annually on March #and Septemberstof each year.

We incurred $8.6 million of financing fees in cootien with the issuance of the 2018 Notes. Therfoirag fees are being amortized
using the effective interest method over an eigtaryperiod, which represents the duration of tHE82dotes.

GE Term Loan

In January 2008, we entered into a capital leasntie arrangement with General Electric Capitap@@tion (“GE Capital”) for the
lease of equipment. In September 2013, we purchisegiquipment subject to the lease for an aggeggathase price of $10.7 million, with
the financing for such purchase provided by Gereladtric at 5.23% interest.

Note 11 — Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) tome

Changes in accumulated other comprehensive (Inssjrie by componeator the nine months ended September 28, 2013 veere a
follows:

(in millions of U.S. dollars September 28, 201.
Currency
Translation
Gains and
Losses on Pension Adjustment
Derivative Benefit
Instruments Plan ltems Items Total
Beginning balance December 29, 2012 $ 0.2 $ (99 $ (3.9 $(12.9)
OCI before reclassificatior 0.2 (0.3 (4.8 (4.9
Amounts reclassified from AOC (0.3 0.€ — 0.3
Net currer-period OCI (0.7) 0.2 (4.9 (4.9
Ending balance September 28, 2! $ 0.1 $ (8.9 $ (8.9 $(17.C

1 All amounts are net of tax. Amounts in parenthésdiate debits
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The following table summarizes the amounts rediassfrom accumulated other comprehensive (los)nmel for the three and nine
months ended September 28, 2013.

(in millions of U.S. dollars Amounts Reclassified From AOCI
For the Three
Months Endec For the Nine
Months Ended
September 28 Affected Line Item in the
September 28 Statement Where Net Income
Details About AOCI Components 2013 2013 Is Presented
Gains and losses on derivative
instruments
Foreign currency hedg: $ 0.1 $ 0.3 Cost of sale:
$ 0.1 $ 0.2 Total before taxe
— — Tax (expense) or bene
$ 0.1 $ 0.2 Net of tax
Amortization of pension benefit pli
items
Prior-service cost? $ 0.1 $ (0.2
Actuarial adjustment? — (0.2
Actuarial gains/(losse¢? — (0.7
0.1 (0.9 Total before tas
— (0.2) Tax (expense) or bene
$ 0.1 $ (0.6) Net of tax
Total reclassifications for the peri $ 0.2 $ 0.9) Net of tax

1 Amounts in parentheses indicate det
2 These AOCI components are included in the compmrtatf net periodic pension co

Note 12 — Commitments and Contingencies

We are subject to various claims and legal procesaivith respect to matters such as governmergalatons, and other actions aris
out of the normal course of business. ManagemdigJes that the resolution of these matters witlimave a material adverse effect on our
financial position, results of operations, or céletv.

On August 17, 2010, we completed the Cliffstar Asiion which included contingent consideratiorugfto $55.0 million. The first
$15.0 million of the contingent consideration wasdpupon the achievement of milestones in certgpaesion projects in 2010. The
remainder of the contingent consideration was todbeulated based on the achievement of certafioqpeance measures during the fiscal
year ended January 1, 2011. During 2011, Cott nrédem payments to the seller equal to $29.6 omilliwhich was net of a $4.7 millic
refund due to Cott and included $0.9 million intleehent of certain of the sellsrbbjections to the calculation of the contingemisideration
In 2011, the seller of Cliffstar then raised certabjections to the performance measures useddolate the contingent consideration, and
parties commenced the dispute resolution mechapismided for in the asset purchase agreement. &lke’s claims for an additional $12.1
million in contingent consideration were submittecinding arbitration pursuant to the asset pwselagreement and favorably resolved by
payment by Cott in February 2013 of approximatelys$nillion.

We had $7.5 million in standby letters of creditstanding as of September 28, 2013 (September02d2, 2 $11.0 million).

Note 13 — Shares Held in Trust Treated as Treasurghares and Share Repurchase Program

In May 2008, an independent trustee acting on belakertain of our benefit plans purchased 2.3iamlof our common shares to be
used to satisfy future liabilities under the Amethded Restated Performance Share Unit Plan anidebtated Executive Incentive Share
Purchase Plan. During the year ended Decembel022, 2ve distributed the remaining 0.7 million sisafirem the trust to satisfy certain 2010
Equity Incentive Plan obligations that had vestadry the last quarter of 2012. As of December28d,2, there were no shares held in trust
that were accounted for as treasury shares.

On May 1, 2012, our board of directors authorizesirepurchase of up to $35.0 million of our comrabares in the open market or
through privately negotiated transactions over-anbth period through either a 10b5-1 automatiditrig plan or at management’s discretion
in compliance with regulatory requirements, ancegimarket, cost and other considerations.
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On April 30, 2013, our board of directors renewed share repurchase program for up to 5% of Cotitstanding common shares over
a 12month period commencing upon the expiration ofgttier share repurchase program on May 21, 2013ra&fferchased 554,769 share
common stock for approximately $4.5 million durithg third quarter ended September 28, 2013 uneéestthre repurchase program through
open market transactions. We are unable to préskatumber of shares that ultimately will be repased under the share repurchase
program, or the aggregate dollar amount of theeshactually purchased. We may discontinue purctetsasy time, subject to compliance
with applicable regulatory requirements.

Note 14 — Hedging Transactions and Derivative Finasial Instruments

We are directly and indirectly affected by chanigefreign currency market conditions. These charnigenarket conditions may
adversely impact our financial performance andreferred to as market risks. When deemed apprepiimanagement, we use derivatives
as a risk management tool to mitigate the potemmtiphct of foreign currency market risks.

We purchase forward contract derivative instrumefdsward contracts are agreements to buy or splbatity of a currency at a
predetermined future date, and at a predetermatedor price. We do not enter into derivative ficiahinstruments for trading purposes.

All derivatives are carried at fair value in therSolidated Balance Sheets in the line item othezivables or other payables. The
carrying values of the derivatives reflect the ictpaf legally enforceable agreements with the samumterparties. These allow us to net s
positive and negative positions (assets and ltas)i arising from different transactions with #@me counterparty.

The accounting for gains and losses that result thanges in the fair values of derivative instroteelepends on whether the
derivatives have been designated and qualify agihgdnstruments and the types of hedging relalignss The changes in fair values of
derivatives that have been designated and qualifyaah flow hedges are recorded in accumulated otimeprehensive income (loss)
(“AOCI”) and are reclassified into the line itemtime Consolidated Statements of Operations in wiiethedged items are recorded in the
same period the hedged items affect earnings. ®theethigh degree of effectiveness between theihgdigstruments and the underlying
exposures being hedged, fluctuations in the valukeoderivative instruments are generally offsgthanges in the fair values or cash flows
of the underlying exposures being hedged.

We formally designate and document, at inceptioe financial instrument as a hedge of a specifaedging exposure, the risk
management objective and the strategy for undergetkie hedge transaction. In addition, we formafigess both at the inception and at least
quarterly thereafter, whether the financial instemts used in hedging transactions are effectioéfsetting changes in either the fair value
cash flows of the related underlying exposures. le§fective portion of a financial instrument’satige in fair value is immediately
recognized into earnings.

We estimate the fair values of our derivatives Hasequoted market prices or pricing models usimgent market rates (refer to Note
15). The notional amounts of the derivative finahaistruments do not necessarily represent amaxutisanged by the parties and, therefore,
are not a direct measure of our exposure to tleméial risks described above. The amounts exchaagecdalculated by reference to the
notional amounts and by other terms of the derreatisuch as interest rates, foreign currency egeheates or other financial indices. We do
not view the fair values of our derivatives in dn, but rather in relation to the fair valuesash flows of the underlying hedged
transactions. All of our derivatives are straightwiard over-the-counter instruments with liquid keds.

Credit Risk Associated with Derivatives

We have established strict counterparty creditginids and enter into transactions only with finahinstitutions of investment grade
better. We mitigate pre-settlement risk by beingnpted to net settle for transactions with the saraunterparty.

Cash Flow Hedging Strategy

We use cash flow hedges to minimize the variabititgash flows of assets or liabilities or foreeastransactions caused by fluctuations
in foreign currency exchange rates. The chang#wifair values of derivatives designated as clast liedges are recorded in AOCI and are
reclassified into the line item in the Consolidagtdtements of Operations in which the hedged i@msecorded in the same period the
hedged items affect earnings. The changes in &ireg of hedges that are determined to be ineffeatie immediately reclassified from
AOCI into earnings. We did not discontinue any ctieW hedging relationships during the nine morghsled September 28, 2013. The
maximum length of time over which we hedge our expe to future cash flows is typically one year.

We maintain a foreign currency cash flow hedginggpam to reduce the risk that our procurement gietsvwill be adversely affected
by changes in foreign currency exchange rates. M&r eto forward contracts to hedge certain pogiof forecasted cash flows denominated
in foreign currencies. The total notional valuedefivatives that have been designated and qualifpdr foreign currency cash flow hedging
program as of September 28, 2013 was approxim&tel/ million.
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The fair value of the Company'’s derivative instruntsewas nil and $0.1 million as of September 28,38nd December 29, 2012,
respectively.

The settlement of our derivative instruments reslit a credit to cost of sales of approximatelyl $illion and $0.5 million for the
three and nine months ended September 28, 201 atbésely, compared to a charge to cost of sal& & million and $0.4 million for the
comparable prior year periods.

Note 15 — Fair Value Measurements

ASC No. 820 defines fair value as the exchangeephat would be received for an asset or paidatasfier a liability (an exit price) in
the principal or most advantageous market for §setor liability in an orderly transaction betweearket participants at the measurement
date. Additionally, the inputs used to measureviaiue are prioritized based on a three-level hidgna This hierarchy requires entities to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minirtfizeuse of unobservable inputs.

The three levels of inputs used to measure fairevate as follows:
* Level 1- Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities.

* Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quotiézkp included in Level 1, such as quoted pricesifmilar assets and liabilities in
active markets; quoted prices for identical or Eamassets and liabilities in markets that areawtitve; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observablkendata

» Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are suppdpielittle or no market activity and that are sfgrant to the fair value of the assets
or liabilities. This includes certain pricing modgtiiscounted cash flow methodologies and sim@lahitiques that use significant
unobservable input:
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We have certain assets and liabilities that araired to be recorded at fair value on a recurriagidin accordance with U.S. GAAP.

September 28, 201

(in millions of U.S. dollars Level 1 Level Z Level & Fair Value Measurement:
Assets

Money marke $10.C $— $ — $ 10.C
Total Assets $10.C $— $— $ 10.C

December 29, 201.

(in millions of U.S. dollars Level 1 Level Z Level & Fair Value Measurement:
Assets

Derivatives $— $ 01 $— $ 0.1
Total Assets $ — $ 01 $— $ 0.1

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reflected in the Consolid&athnce Sheets for cash, receivables, payables;tem borrowings and long-term
debt approximate their respective fair values, pkas otherwise indicated. The carrying valuesestoinated fair values of our significant
outstanding debt as of September 28, 2013 and Dere?d, 2012 were as follows:

September 28, 201 December 29, 201.
(in millions of U.S. dollars Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
8.375% senior notes due in 2017 $ 215.( 225.2 $ 215.C 234.¢
8.125% senior notes due in 2(t 375.( 405.¢ 375.( 414.¢
Total $ 590.C $ 6311 % 500.C $ 649.

1 The fair values are based on the trading levelshéahdffer prices observed by a market participamd are considered Level 1 inpt

Note 16 — Guarantor Subsidiaries

The 2017 Notes and 2018 Notes issued by our 100feadwubsidiary, Cott Beverages, Inc., are uncarditly guaranteed on a senior
basis pursuant to guarantees by Cott Corporatidrcartain other 100% owned subsidiaries (the “GutaraSubsidiaries”). The guarantees of
the Guarantor Subsidiaries are subject to releabmited circumstances only upon the occurrenceesfain customary conditions.

We have not presented separate financial stateraadtseparate disclosures have not been providextoung subsidiary guarantors
because management has determined such infornigtiat material to the holders of the above-memtibnotes.

The following supplemental financial informationtséorth on an unconsolidated basis, our Balanee8h Statements of Operations
and Cash Flows for Cott Corporation, Cott Beverdges Guarantor Subsidiaries and our other suasas (the “Non-guarantor
Subsidiaries”) The supplemental financial information reflects owestments and those of Cott Beverages Inc.dir thspective subsidiari
using the equity method of accounting. In the tlgjuérter of 2012, we revised the financial statesefcertain Norguarantor Subsidiaries
properly reflect their capitalization and subseduewestment in certain Guarantor Subsidiariesltiegufrom a reorganization completed in
connection with the Cliffstar Acquisition. TheseNguarantor Subsidiaries, which have no businessatipns and no operating assets, hold,
directly or indirectly, our investments in substally all of the Guarantor Subsidiaries and therefmay be viewed for purposes of this
disclosure as in-substance Guarantor Subsididr@agelves. We have therefore included these Noragtax Subsidiaries as Guarantor
Subsidiaries in the supplemental financial inforierabelow for all periods presented.
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Revenue, net
Cost of sale!

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative exper
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm

Operating (loss) income

Other income, ne
Intercompany interest (income) expense,
Interest (income) expense, |

(Loss) income before income tax (benefit)
expense and equity income (loss)

Income tax (benefit) expen
Equity income (loss

Net income (loss)

Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling

interests

Net income (loss) attributed to Cott
Corporation

Comprehensive income attributed to Cotl
Corporation

For the Three Months Ended September 28, 201

Elimination
Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Corporation Beverages Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 425 3 197.€ $ 271F % 374 $ (5.8 $ 543.
39. 170. 241.: 33.C (5.6) 478.:
3.8 27.1 30.2 4.4 — 65.C
6.8 14.¢€ 13.2 3.C — 37.¢
0.1 0.4 0.€ — — 1.1
(3.6) 11.€ 16.4 14 — 26.C
(0.2) — (0.€) — — (0.7)

— (3.0 3. — — —
(0.2) 13.1 0.2 0.1 — 13.:
(3.4) 1.7 13.€ 1.2 — 13.4
(2.9 3.¢ (1.2) 0.2 — 0.1

12.€ 2 (0.9) — (13.6) —
$ 12C $ 09 % 147  $ 11 $ (136 $ 13.E
— — — 1.2 — 1.3
$ 12C $ 09 $ 147  $ 02 $ (136 $ 12.C
$ 23.¢ % 28¢ % 306 $ — $ (595 % 23.¢
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Revenue, net
Cost of sale!

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative exper
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm
Restructuring

Operating (loss) income

Other (income), ne
Intercompany interest (income) expense,
Interest (income) expense, |

(Loss) income before income tax expense (bene
and equity income (loss)

Income tax (benefit) expen
Equity income (loss

Net income (loss

Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling
interests

Net income (loss) attributed to Cott Corporation

Comprehensive income (loss) attributed to Col
Corporation

For the Nine Months Ended September 28, 201

Elimination
Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Corporation ~ Beverages Inc  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 131¢ $ 6058 $ 7774 $ 116.C $ (1849 $ 1,612.
114.¢ 520.] 695.¢ 102.: (18.9) 1,414
17.4 85.4 81.t 13.7 — 198.(
22.¢ 53.¢ 37.7 7.1 — 120.¢
0.1 0.7 0.€ — — 1.4
0.5 0.5 0.7 0.2 — 2.C
(5.5 30.¢ 42.F 6.2 — 73.7
(0.2) — (0.9 — — (0.4)
— (8.7) 8.7 — — —
(0.2) 39.1 0.4 0.1 — 39.£
(5.2) — 33.7 6.2 — 34.7
(2.1) 5.5 (1.5) 0.4 — g
31.€ 3. (0.9) — (34.6) —
$ 28 $ (160 $ 34: $ 58 $ (346 $ 32«
— — — 3.8 — 3.6
$ 28 % (1.6 $ 345 8 1€ $ (346 $ 28.t
$ 23¢ % (21) $ 33% % 41 $ (353 $  23.¢
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Revenue, net
Cost of sale!

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative exper
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm

Operating income

Other (income) expense, r
Intercompany interest (income) expense,

Interest expense, n

Income before income tax expense (benefit)
and equity income

Income tax expense (bene!
Equity income

Net income

Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling

interests
Net income attributed to Cott Corporation

Comprehensive income (loss) attributed to
Cott Corporation

For the Three Months Ended September 29, 201

Elimination

Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Corporation Beverages Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec

$ 526 $ 220z $ 271¢ 9 46 $ (75) $ 583t
42.1 187.2 246.7 42.1 (7.5) 510.¢
10.5 33.C 24.¢ 4.8 — 73.2
8.1 18.2 15.1 2.3 — 43.¢
— 0.2 0.1 0.5 — 0.8
24 14.F 9.7 2.C — 28.€
(0.4) (1.2) 0.1 (0.2) — (1.5)
— (3.5) 3.E — — —
— 12.¢ 0.2 0.1 — 13.1
2.8 - 5.6 2.C — 17.C
0. 1.2 (1.0) 0.1 — 1.2
12.€ 1.t 6.5 — (20.6) —

$ 145 3 66 $ 132 $ 1¢ $ (200 $  15¢
— — — 1.2 — 1.3

$ 145 3 6.6 $ 13<2 $ 06 $ (200 $  14F

$ 272 $ 26.8 $ 24C 3 9€ $ (6049 $ 27.2
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Revenue, net
Cost of sale!

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative exper
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm

Operating income

Other expense (income), r
Intercompany interest (income) expense,
Interest expense, n

Income before income tax expense (benefit) and
equity income

Income tax expense (bene!
Equity income

Net income

Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling
interests

Net income attributed to Cott Corporation

Comprehensive income (loss) attributed to Cott
Corporation

For the Nine Months Ended September 29, 201

Elimination

Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Corporation  Beverages Inc  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 157€ $ 669.¢ $ 7991 $ 1315 $ (247 $ 1,733
126.5 564.< 719.¢ 118.5 (24.9) 1,504.!
30.€ 105.¢ 79.7 12.¢ — 228.¢
23.4 58.C 45.1 7.6 — 134.¢
— 0.€ 0.€ 0.t — 1.7
7.5 46.€ 34.C 4.4 — 92.¢
0.1 (1.0) (0.8) (0.5) — (2.2)
— (8.2) 8.2 — — —
0.2 39.¢ 0.5 0.1 — 40.€
7.2 16.c 26.1 4.€ — 54.¢
4.1 1.€ (0.4) — — £
42.4 3.€ 18.% — (64.5) —
$ 45%5 $ 182 $ 44¢ $ 4€ $ (645 $  48¢
— — — 3.4 — 3.4
$ 455 §$ 18.: $ 44¢ % 14 $ (645 $ 45.F
$ 58& $ 442 $  (38.0 $ 55 $ (614 $  58.¢
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Consolidating Balance Sheets

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

ASSETS

Current asset:

Cash & cash equivalen

Accounts receivable, net of allowar
Income taxes recoverak
Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other as

Total current assets

Property, plant & equipment, n
Goodwill

Intangibles and other assets,
Deferred income taxe

Other tax receivabl

Due from affiliates
Investments in subsidiari

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Current maturities of lor-term debt
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit

Total current liabilities

Long-term debi
Deferred income taxe
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Due to affiliates

Total liabilities

Equity

Capital stock, no pe

Additional paic-in-capital

Retained earnings (defic

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) ince
Total Cott Corporation equity

Non-controlling interest:

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

As of September 28, 201

Elimination

Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Corporation Beverages Inc  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 23z % 41¢ $ 552 $ 52 $ — $ 125¢
22.C 123t 206.2 14.¢ (112.0 254.¢
— 0.5 0.2 — — 0.7
19.C 79.2 109.¢ 7.€ — 215.¢
1.7 15.1 6.2 0.1 — 23.1
65.¢ 260.2 377.¢ 27.¢ (112.0 619.¢
50.5 191.¢ 237.¢ 10.5 — 490.1
26.€ 4.5 109.: — — 140.¢
1.2 90.¢ 199.¢ 11.¢ — 303.¢
4.¢ — — 0.€ — 5.8
0.t 0.1 0.€ — — 1.2
30.¢ 174.¢ 78.( 41.¢ (334.9) —
496.¢ 390.7 824.¢ (0.1)  (1,712.9) —
$ 686.( $ 1,113 $ 1,827 $ 92/ $(2,158.) $ 1,560.:
$ = $ 25 $ 0t $ 0c $ — $ 3.6
30.C 139.] 195.¢ 6.8 (112.0 259.7
30.C 141.¢ 196.: 7.7 (112.0 263.¢
0.1 598. 2.2 1.€ — 602.4
— 35.€ 11.¢ 1.1 — 48.1
0.1 34 20.2 — — 23.i
43.2 76.7 177.: 37.1 (334.9) —
73.2 855.7 407.t 47.¢ (446.7) 937.¢
392.7 574.% 1,728.¢ 82.t (2,385.9 392.7
43.C — — — — 43.C
193.( (329.9 (317.9) (49.0) 696.( 193.(
(17.0) 12.7 8.4 1.4 (22.5) (17.0
612.¢ 257.¢ 1,420.: 34.C (1,712.9) 612.¢
— — — 10.C — 10.C
612.¢ 257.¢ 1,420.: 44.€ (1,712.9) 622.¢
$ 686.C $ 1,113.. $ 1,827t $ 92.£ $(2,158.) $ 1,560.
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Consolidating Balance Sheets

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash & cash equivalen

Accounts receivable, net of allowar

Income taxes recoverak
Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other as

Total current assets

Property, plant & equipment, n

Goodwill

Intangibles and other assets,
Deferred income taxe

Other tax receivabl

Due from affiliates
Investments in subsidiari

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities

Current maturities of lor-term debt
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit

Total current liabilities

Long-term debi
Deferred income taxe
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Due to affiliates

Total liabilities

Equity

Capital stock, no pe
Additional paic-in-capital
Retained earnings (defic

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) ince

Total Cott Corporation equity
Non-controlling interest:

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

As of December 29, 201

Elimination
Cott Cott Guarantor ~ Non-Guarantor

Corporation Beverages Inc  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 39.¢ $ 37t $ 96.4 $ 57 $ — $ 179«
18. 111.5 122.% 16.2 (69.0) 199.

— 0.€ 0.2 0.1 — 1.2

21.1 65.¢ 130.¢ 7.C — 224.¢

2.5 13.4 4.2 0.1 — 20.5

81.¢ 229.2 354.( 29.1 (69.0) 625.]

50.7 188.< 242.( 9.8 — 490.¢

27.5 4.t 98.: — — 130.:

1.C 101. 198.< 14.¢ — 315.¢

2.6 — — 04 — 3.2

0.2 0.1 0.€ — — 0.€

40.C 175.: 78.C 41.¢ (335.]) —
487.F 389.7 820.( —  (1,697.) —

$ 691¢ $ 1,088! $ 1,791 $ 95.6 $(2,101.) $ 1,565.¢
$ — 3 12 8 02 $ 04 $ — 3 1L.g
36.2 119.5 193.1 7.8 (69.0) 287.

36.2 120.¢ 193.: 8.3 (69.0) 289.¢

0.2 598.7 1.t 14 — 601.¢

— 30.5 7.8 0.8 — 39.1

0.2 4.C 8.2 — — 12.5

43.2 76.7 177.¢ 37.4 (335.)) —

79.€ 830.t 388.¢ 48.C (404.)) 943.(
397.¢ 574.% 1,724.; 83.6 (2,382.) 397.¢
40.4 — — — — 40.4
186.( (329.7) (331.2) (46.7) 707.( 186.(
(12.4) 13.2 9.4 (0.8 (21.9) (12.4)
611.¢ 258.( 1,402.t 36.7 (1,697.) 611.¢

— — — 11.1 — 11.1
611.¢ 258.( 1,402.! 47.&  (1,697.) 622.¢

$ 691¢ $ 1,088! $ 1,791 $ 95.6 $(2,101.) $ 1,565.¢
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Consolidating Statements of Condensed Cash Flows
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited
For the Three Months Ended September 28, 201
Elimination
Cott Cott Guarantor  Non-Guarantor
Corporation Beverages Inc  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
Operating Activities
Net income (loss $ 12.C $ 0.9 % 147 $ 11 $ (136 $ 13.:
Depreciation & amortizatio 1.€ 9.€ 12.5 1.€ — 25.1
Amortization of financing fee — 0.7 — — — 0.7
Share-based compensation expel 0.3 0.7 0.1 — — 11
(Decrease) increase in deferred income ti (2.5 3.4 (0.5 (0.7 — 0.2
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm 0.1 0.4 0.€ — — 11
Equity (income) loss, net of distributio (12.6) (1.3 0.3 — 13.€ —
Intercompany transactiol 2.2 2.4 — — (4.€) —
Other nor-cash item: 0.z (0.2 — — — —
Net change in operating assets and liabilitiesphet
acquisition (0.9 28.< 15.¢ (2.5) 4.€ 45.¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 0.€ 43.1 43.2 0.1 — 87.£
Investing Activities
Acquisition, net of cash acquirt — 4.7 — — — (4.7
Additions to property, plant & equipme (1.2 (7.9 (1.2 — — (10.2)
Additions to intangibles and other ass — (2.7 — — — (2.7
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipn — — — 0.2 — 0.2
Advances to affiliate — — — 0.3 (0.3 —
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi (1.7) (14.9) (1.2 0.5 (0.3 (16.€)
Financing Activities
Payments of lor-term deb! — — (0.2) (0.5) — (0.6)
Advances from affiliate 0.3 — — — 0.3 —
Distributions to no-controlling interest: — — — (2.2 — (2.2
Common shares repurchased and canc (4.5 — — — — (4.5
Financing fee: (0.2) — — — — (0.2)
Dividends to shareholde (5.5 — — — — (5.5
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (10.9 — (0.2 2.7 0.3 (12.9
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 0.t — 0.8 — — K
Net (decrease) increase in cash & cash equivalel (10.7) 28.4 42.¢ (2.2) — 59.C
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of period 33.8 13.t 12.€ 7.4 — 66.¢
Cash & cash equivalents, end of perio $ 232z $ 41¢ $ 55.4 $ 523 & — $ 125¢
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Consolidating Statements of Condensed Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Operating Activities
Net income (loss
Depreciation & amortizatio
Amortization of financing fee
Share-based compensation expel
(Decrease) increase in deferred income ti
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm
Equity (income) loss, net of distributio
Intercompany transactiol
Other nor-cash item:
Net change in operating assets and liabilitiesphet
acquisition
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi

Investing Activities
Acquisition, net of cash acquirt
Additions to property, plant & equipme
Additions to intangibles and other ass
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipn
Proceeds from insurance recovel
Advances to affiliate

Net cash used in investing activiti

Financing Activities
Payments of lor-term deb!
Advances from affiliate
Distributions to no-controlling interest:
Common shares repurchased and canc
Financing fee:
Dividends to shareholde

Net cash used in financing activiti

Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢

Net (decrease) increase in cash & cash equivalel
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of perio
Cash & cash equivalents, end of perio

For the Nine Months Ended September 28, 201

Elimination

Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Corporation Beverages Inc  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 28F $ (1.6) $ 34: $ 58 $ (346 $ 32«
4.7 29.C 36.4 4.€ — 741
0.1 2.C 0.1 — — 2.2
1.1 2.2 0.3 — — 3.€
(2.0 5.2 (1.2) (0.1) — 1.¢
0.1 0.7 0.€ — — 14
(31.6) (3.9 0. — 34.€ —
24.1 5.2 — — (30.0) —
0.2 — — — — 0.2
(4.6) 2.4 (76.9 4.2 30.C (53.5)
21.( 41.% (5.5) 6.1 — 62.¢
— 4.7 (6.5) — — (11.2)
(6.0 (27.9) (9.5) 1.3 — (44.9)
— (4.0 — — — (4.0
— — — 0.2 — 0.2
— 0.4 — — — 0.4
— — — 0.4 (0.4) —
(6.0) (36.2) (16.0) (0.7) (0.4) (59.9)
(0.7 (0.7) (18.¢) (0.9 — (20.2)
(0.9 — — — 04 —
— — — (5.0 — (5.0
(12.9 — — — — (12.9
(0.2 — — — — (0.2)
(16.7) — — — — (16.7)
(30.2) (0.7) (18.6) (5.9) 0.4 (54.9)
(1.4) — (0.9) — — (2.3)
(16.€) 4.4 (41.0) (0.4) — (53.6)
39.¢ 37.5 96.4 5.7 — 179.¢
$ 23.2 $ 41.¢ $ 55.4 $ 52 $ —  $ 125.¢
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Consolidating Statements of Condensed Cash Flows
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited
For the Three Months Ended September 29, 201
Elimination
Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Corporation Beverages Inc  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
Operating Activities
Net income $ 145 $ 6.6 $ 134 $ 19 $ (206 % 15.¢
Depreciation & amortizatio 1.€ 9.4 12.1 1.€ — 24
Amortization of financing fee 0.1 0.€ 0.1 — — 0.t
Share-based compensation expel 0.2 0.€ 0.3 (0.2) — 1.
Increase (decrease) in deferred income t 0.€ 1.2 1.3 0.1 — 0.€
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm — 0.2 0.1 0.5 — 0.€
Equity (loss) income, net of distributio (12.6) (1.5 (6.5 — 20.€ —
Intercompany transactiol 2.1 2.1 — — (4.2 —
Other nor-cash item: (0.9 (1.0 — — — (1.9
Net change in operating assets and liabil 16.£ 0.€ (3.4) (2.7) 4.2 15.2
Net cash provided by operating activit 22.5 19.4 14.¢ 1.3 — 58.(
Investing Activities
Acquisition — (4.7 — — — (4.7)
Additions to property, plant & equipme (1.2 (9.0 1.7 1.3 — (13.2)
Additions to intangibles and other ass (0.5 (1.0 0.€ — — (1.0
Proceeds from sale of assets held for — — — 1.3 — 1.2
Proceeds from insurance recovel — 1.7 — — — 1.7
Advances to affiliate — — — (1.6) 1.€ —
Net cash used in investing activiti (1.7) (13.7) (1.7) (1.6) 1.€ (15.9
Financing Activities
Payments of lor-term debt 0.1 (0.2 — (0.7 — (0.2
Advances from affiliate 1.€ — — — (1.6 —
Distributions to no-controlling interest: — — — (1.9 — (1.9
Financing fee: — (1.2 — — — (1.2
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 1.7 (1.9 — (2.0 (1.6) 3.3
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 1.2 — 0.8 0.2 — 2.2
Net increase (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents 23.7 4.€ 14.5 (2.7) — 41.C
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of perio 16.¢ 3.2 18.¢ 8.3 — 47.1
Cash & cash equivalents, end of period $ 405 $ 8.1 $ 332 $ 6.2 $ — 8 88.1
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Consolidating Statements of Condensed Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Operating Activities
Net income

Depreciation & amortizatio

Amortization of financing fee

Share-based compensation expel

Increase (decrease) in deferred income t

Gain on bargain purcha

Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm

Equity (loss) income, net of distributio

Intercompany transactiol

Other nor-cash item:

Net change in operating assets and liabilitiesphet
acquisition

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi

Investing Activities

Acquisition

Additions to property, plant & equipme
Additions to intangibles and other ass
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipn
Proceeds from insurance recovel

Advances to affiliate

Net cash used in investing activiti

Financing Activities

Payments of lor-term deb!
Borrowings under ABL

Payments under AB

Advances from affiliate

Distributions to no-controlling interest:
Common share repurcha

Financing Fee

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢

Net increase (decrease) in cash & cash equivalel
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of perio
Cash & cash equivalents, end of perio

For the Nine Months Ended September 29, 201

Elimination
Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Corporation Beverages Inc  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 455 $ 18.2 $ 448 $ 48 $ (645 $  48¢
4.7 27.1 36.C 4.4 — 72.2
0.2 2.t 0.2 — — 2.6
1.C 1.7 0.8 — — 85
1.7 3.7 (0.7) (0.1) — 4.€
— — (0.9 — — (0.9)
— 0.€ 0.€ 0.t — 1.7
(42.4) (3.6) (18.9) — 64.F —
18.2 3.k — — (21.6) —
— (0.€) — — — (0.8)
(2.9 (20.7) (76.2) (2.9) 21.¢ (79.7)
26.7 32.7 (13.7) 7.3 — 53.(
— (4.7) (5.0 — — (9.7)
(5.9 (33.9) (9.9 (1.6) — (50.6)
(0.5 (4.7) 0.t — — (4.7)
— — 1.C 1.3 — 2.2
— 1.7 — — — 1.7
— — — (5.1) 5.1 —
(5.9 (41.5) (13.9) (5.4) 5.1 (61.0)
0.1 (2.6) — (0.3 — (2.9
— 24t — — — 24t
— (24.5) — — — (24.5)
5.1 — — — (5.1) —
— — — (3.3 — (3.9
(0.3) — — — — (0.3)
— (1.2) — — — (1.2)
4.¢ (3.6) — (3.6) (5.1) (7.€)
1.1 — 1.4 0.3 — 2.8
26.€ (12.6) (25.6) (1.4) — (12.€)
13.7 20.7 58.¢ 7.€ — 100.¢
$ 40F $ 81 $ 332 % 62 $ — $ 881




Note 17 — Subsequent Events

On September 30, 2013, Cott Beverages Inc. notifietls Fargo Bank, National Association, as suamessstee to HSBC Bank USA,
N.A. under the Indenture, that Cott Beverageswilt, pursuant to the optional redemption provisaontained in the Indenture, redeem |
$200.0 million aggregate principal amount of th& 20otes on November 15, 2013 at 104.118% of gee.rédemption will include
approximately $8 million in premium payments ashaslapproximately $4 million in deferred financifeg and discount charges.

On October 22, 2013, we amended the ABL facilityatmong other things, (1) provide for an increasthée lenders’ commitments
under the ABL facility to $300 million, as well amcrease to the accordion feature, which permit®uscrease the lenders’ commitments
under the ABL facility to $350 million, subject tertain conditions, (2) extend the maturity datéhtearliest of (i) October 22, 2018,

(i) May 15, 2017, if we have not redeemed, repasgd or refinanced the 2017 Notes by May 1, 20d{#ijoMarch 1, 2018, if we have not
redeemed, repurchased or refinanced the 2018 gtEsbruary 15, 2018, and (3) provide for gredeilbility under certain covenants. We
incurred approximately $0.6 million of financingefein connection with the amendment of the ABLIfgci

On October 29, 2013, our board of directors dedlardividend of CAD$0.06 per common share, payabtash on December 12, 20
to shareowners of record at the close of busine€3ezember 2, 2013.
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Item 2. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Firer@ondition and Results of Operations is intentteflrther the reader’s
understanding of the consolidated financial condifind results of operations of our Company. lushbe read in conjunction with the
financial statements included in this quarterlyotn Form 10-Q and our annual report on Form 1fe+#kthe year ended December 29, 2012
(the “2012 Annual Report”). These historical finatstatements may not be indicative of our futpeeformance. This discussion contains a
number of forward-looking statements, all of whaole based on our current expectations and couddiféeted by the uncertainties and risks
referred to under “Risk Factors” in Item 1A in @012 Annual Report.

Overview

We are one of the world’s largest producers of beyes on behalf of retailers, brand owners andiliigbrs. Our objective of creating
sustainable long-term growth in revenue and proiityt is predicated on working closely with ourstamers to provide proven profitable
products. As a “fast followerdf innovative products, our goal is to identify whinew products are succeeding in the marketpladelavelo
similar high quality products at a better valueisTdbjective is increasingly relevant in more diffit economic times.

The beverage market is subject to some seasonativas. Our beverage sales are generally higheéngithe warmer months and also
can be influenced by the timing of holidays and theafluctuations. The purchases of our raw mateand related accounts payable fluct
based upon the demand for our products as welleaBrhing of the fruit growing seasons. The seaiynaf our sales volume combined with
the seasonal nature of fruit growing causes oukingrcapital needs to fluctuate throughout the yedh inventory levels increasing in the
first half of the year in order to meet high summdemand, and with fruit inventories peaking durting last quarter of the year when
purchases are made after the growing season. lticedaur accounts receivable balances declirteerfall as customers pay their higher-
than-average outstanding balances from the sumetieedes.

We typically operate at low margins and therefalatively small changes in cost structures can niadlieaffect our results.

Ingredient and packaging costs represent a signifiportion of our cost of sales. These costsagst to global and regional
commodity price trends. Our most significant comitied are aluminum, polyethylene terephthalate "BEesin, corn, sugar, fruit and fruit
concentrates. We attempt to manage our expostigctaations in ingredient and packaging costs figeng into fixed price commitments
for a portion of our ingredient and packaging regients and implementing price increases as needed.

In June of 2013, our United Kingdom (“U.K.”) repioig segment acquired 100 percent of the shareatayiCooke Bros Holdings
Limited, which includes the subsidiary compar_lie_g{ﬁm Soft Drinks Limited and Mr. Freeze (Europé@hlted (together, “Calypso Soft
purchase price for the acquisition of Calypso ®wihks (the “Calypso Soft Drinks Acquisition”) w&i.2.1 million, which includes
approximately $7 million paid at closing, deferpad/ments of approximately $2.3 million and $3.0liomil to be paid on the first and second
anniversary of the closing date of the Calypso Boifiks Acquisition, respectively. The closing pagmbwas funded from available cash.

In 2010, we completed the acquisition of substéptal of the assets and liabilities of Cliffst&orporation (“Cliffstar”) and its
affiliated companies for approximately $503.0 ro#fliin cash, $14.0 million in deferred consideragayable in equal installments over three
years and contingent consideration of up to $55liom (the “Cliffstar Acquisition”). The first $15.0 million bthe contingent consideration
was paid upon the achievement of milestones iraiteeixpansion projects in 2010. The remainder efctbntingent consideration was to be
calculated based on the achievement of certaimpaghce measures during the fiscal year ended dahpa011. In 2011, the seller of
Cliffstar raised certain objections to the perfonm@measures used to calculate the contingentdmrasion, and the parties commenced the
dispute resolution mechanism provided for in theeaipurchase agreement. During 2011, we madermfsyments to the seller equal to
$29.6 million, which was net of a $4.7 million reflidue to us and included $0.9 million in settletradrcertain of the seller’s objections to
the calculation of the contingent consideratione Shller’s claims for an additional $12.1 milliondontingent consideration were submitted
to binding arbitration pursuant to the asset pusetegreement and favorably resolved in Februar@ B§Jour payment of $0.6 million to
settle all claims.

We supply Walmart and its affiliated companies,@mahnual non-exclusive supply agreements, withrgety of products in the United
States, Canada, the United Kingdom, and Mexicduéing carbonated soft drinks (“CSDs”), 100% shttble juice and juice-based
products, clear, still and sparkling flavored waj@nergy products, sports products, new age bgegrand ready-to-drink teas. During the
first nine months of 2013, we supplied Walmart vathof its private-label CSDs in the United Statesthe event Walmart were to utilize
additional suppliers to fulfill a portion of itsgairements for such products, our operating reswaltsd be materially adversely affected. Sales
to Walmart for the nine months ended Septembe2@83 and September 29, 2012 accounted for 29.993hi3d6 of total revenue,
respectively.
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Non-GAAP Measures

In this report, we supplement our reporting of ficial measures determined in accordance with We&eglly accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) by utilizing certain non-GAAHrancial measures. We exclude the impact of foreiphange to separate the impact of
currency exchange rate changes from our resutip@rations, and, in some cases, by excluding tpadtof the Calypso Soft Drinks
Acquisition. We exclude these items to better usided trends in the business and the impact af#hgpso Soft Drinks Acquisition.

We also utilize earnings before interest expersse&d, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”), whiis GAAP earnings before
interest expense, provision for income taxes, d@atien and amortization. We consider EBITDA toareindicator of operating performan:
We also use EBITDA, as do analysts, lenders, imvestind others, because it excludes certain ithaiscan vary widely across different
industries or among companies within the same imngushese differences can result in considerabhéability in the relative costs of
productive assets and the depreciation and ambotizeaxpense among companies. We also utilize ssjusBITDA, which is EBITDA
adjusted for inventory step-up (step-down), actjoisicosts, and integration costs related to thgpgsa Soft Drinks Acquisition or the
Cliffstar Acquisition, as the case may be (“AdjusEBITDA”). We consider Adjusted EBITDA to be ardioator of our operating
performance. Adjusted EBITDA excludes certain itamaake more meaningful period-over-period conguars of our ongoing core
operations before material charges.

We also utilize adjusted net income, which is GA&dPnings (loss) excluding purchase accounting adprgts, integration expenses,
restructuring expenses and asset impairments, lhasvadjusted earnings per diluted share, whi@ujasted net income divided by diluted
weighted average outstanding shares. We considse tmeasures to be indicators of our operatingeance. These measures exclude
certain items to make period-over-period compassafirour ongoing core operations before materiargés.

Additionally, we supplement our reporting of neslegrovided by operating activities determineddocadance with GAAP by
excluding capital expenditures to present free ¢lasty which management believes provides usefidrination to investors about the amc
of cash generated by the business that, afterciipgisition of property and equipment, can be usedtrategic opportunities, including
investing in our business, making strategic actjaiss, paying dividends, and strengthening therzaasheet.

Because we use these adjusted financial resullteeimanagement of our business and to understatatlyimg business performance,
we believe this supplemental information is uséuhvestors for their independent evaluation andaustanding of our business performance
and the performance of our management. The@AAP financial measures described above are intiaddio, and not meant to be conside
superior to, or a substitute for, our financiatstaents prepared in accordance with GAAP. In aalditihe non-GAAP financial measures
included in this report reflect our judgment of ggarlar items, and may be different from, and tfieme may not be comparable to, similarly
titted measures reported by other companies.

Summary financial results

Our net income for the three months ended Septehe2013 (the “third quarter”) and the nine morghded September 28, 2013
(“first nine months of 2013” or “year to date”) w$2.0 million or $0.13 per diluted share and $28illion or $0.30 per diluted share,
respectively, compared to net income of $14.5 arillor $0.15 per diluted share and $45.5 millioB@#8 per diluted share for the three and
nine months ended September 29, 2012, respectively.

The following items of significance impacted onaficial results for the third quarter and first imonths of 2013:

. our revenue decreased 7.0% year to date fremdmparable prior year period (8.1% excludingitigact of Calypso) due
primarily to lower global volumes slightly offsey lan increase in average price per case on a dghaiséd. Absent foreign
exchange impact, revenue decreased 6.4% yearddrdat the comparable prior year peri

. our gross profit as a percentage of revenue demidasl?2.0% and 12.3% for the third quarter and t@date, respectivel
compared to 12.5% and 13.2%, respectively, fronctmparable prior year period due primarily to lowelumes which
resulted in unfavorable fixed cost absorpti

. our filled beverage 8-ounce equivalents (“bagercase volume™jyhich excludes concentrate sales, decreased 8.8#4q
date due primarily to the general market declintheaNorth American CSD category and increased ptimmal activity
from the national brand

. our selling, general and administrative (“SG&8A'penses for the first nine months decreased26.$ million from
$134.4 million in the comparable prior year peréhe primarily to lower employee-related expensesareduction in
professional fees and similar cos
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our loss on disposal of property, plant and equimes related to the disposal of approximatelyt $dillion of equipmen
that was either replaced or no longer being usediirJ.S. operating segme

other income was $0.4 million year to date careg to other income of $2.2 million in the com®ezprior year period
due to insurance recoveries in excess of the fagsgiied on a U.S. facility in the amount of $1.3liom and recording a
bargain purchase of $0.9 million in the U.K. in fhvéor year compared to $0.4 million in income asated with foreign
exchange effects in the current ye

our interest expense decreased by $1.2 millionrasidt of an amendment to our ABL facility to mdagorable terms

our income tax expense was $2.3 million yeatate compared to $5.5 million in the comparabierprear period, due
primarily to a reduction in pretax incom

our Adjusted EBITDA decreased 9.4% to $154.Bioni year to date from $170.4 million in the comalale prior year
period due to the items listed above;

our adjusted net income and adjusted earniagslijuted share were $33.5 million and $0.35 yeatate, respectively,
compared to $48.7 million and $0.51 in the prioaryeespectively

The following items of significance impacted onaficial results for the third quarter and first imonths of 2012:

our revenue decreased 2.9% year to date freradimparable prior year period due primarily teealithe in North America
volume resulting from our exit from certain low rgar business and a product mix shift into juicenlisiand sports drinks
from 100% shelf-stable juice. Absent foreign exa@mpact, revenue decreased 1.9% year to datetfrewomparable
prior year period

our gross profit as a percentage of revenueased to 12.5% and 13.2% for the third quarteryaad to date, respectively,
compared to 11.1% and 12.6%, respectively, fronctmparable prior year periods due primarily tadéased pricing on
products and our exit from lower margin busin

our beverage case volume decreased 8.7% yeatealue primarily to the exit of certain low miargusiness and the
continuing decline in the North America CSD indys

our SG&A expenses for the first nine month2@12 increased to $134.4 million from $128.3 miilia the comparable
prior year period due primarily to an increaseeénta@in employee-related costs compared to a logerithe annual
incentive and lon-term incentive accruals in the prior ye

our loss on disposal of property, plant andigaent year to date was the result of the salefa€iity in each of Mexico
and the U.K. and normal operational dispos

our other income was $2.2 million year to dagea result of insurance recoveries in excessedbss incurred on a U.S.
facility in the amount of $1.3 million and recordia bargain purchase of $0.9 million in the U.Kmgared to other
expense of $2.1 million in the comparable priorrygeriod, which was the result of $1.2 million oréign exchange effects
and $0.9 million in adjustments to the contingesrsideration associated with the Cliffstar Acqunsit

our interest expense decreased by $2.8 million igedate as a result of decreased debt balancagshrelighout the periox

our income tax expense was $5.5 million year te dampared to a $1.7 million benefit in the compkrarior year periot
due primarily to the recording of $4.3 million dfaavances against deferred tax assets in the bab are uncertain to be
realized and the lapping of a favorable tax setieinin the prior year; ar

our Adjusted EBITDA increased 2.8% to $170.4lion year to date from $165.8 million in the comalale prior year
period.
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The following table summarizes our Consolidatedestents of Operations as a percentage of revemulddhree and nine months
ended September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2@p2ctevely:

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

September 28, 201  September 29, 201  September 28, 201  September 29, 201
(in millions of U.S. dollars $ % $ % $ % $ %
Revenue 543.2 100.C 583.6 100.C 1,612.. 100.C 1,733.. 100.(
Cost of sale: 478.2 88.C 510.¢ 87t 1,414. 877 1,504.! 86.¢
Gross profit 65.C 12.C 73.2 12.5 198.( 12.: 228.¢ 13.2
Selling, general, and administrative exper 37.¢ 7.C 43.¢ 7.5 120.¢ 7.5 134.¢ 7.8
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm 1.1 0.2 0.8 0.1 1.4 0.1 1.7 0.1
Restructuring — — — — 2.C 0.1 — —
Operating incomi 26.C 4.€ 28.€ 4.6 73.7 4.€ 92.¢ 5.4
Other income, ne (0.7 (0. (1.5 (0.3 (0.4 (0.0 (2.2 (0.3
Interest expense, n 13.2 2.4 13.1 2.2 39.4 2.4 40.€ 2.3
Income before income tax 13.¢ 2.t 17.C 2.€ 34.7 2.2 54.¢ 3.1
Income tax expens 0.1 0.C 1.2 0.2 2.2 0.1 5.5 0.2
Net income 13.Z 2.4 15.¢ 2.7 32.4 2.C 48.¢ 2.8
Less: Net income attributable to r-controlling interest: 1.2 0.2 1.3 0.2 3.¢ 0.2 3.4 0.2
Net income attributed to Cott Corporati 12.C 2.2 14.t 2.5 28.t 1.8 45.F 2.€
Depreciation & amortizatio 25.1 4.€ 24.1 4.2 4.0 4.€ 72.2 4.2

The following table summarizes our revenue and apeg income (loss) by reporting segment for tireg¢hand nine months ended
September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, resggcti

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. dollars September 28, 201 September 29, 201 September 28, 201 September 29, 201
Revenu

North America $ 383.c $ 439.2 $ 1,194.¢ $ 1,323.:
United Kingdom 142.€ 125.F 368.2 356.2
Mexico 7.t 9.7 22.¢€ 29.C
RCI 9.5 9.3 27.C 25.1
Total $ 543.2 $ 583.¢ $ 1,612.¢ $ 1,733.¢
Operating income (los:

North America $ 14.¢ $ 18.¢ $ 49.: $ 67.4
United Kingdom 9.5 7.8 18.€ 21.t
Mexico (1.2) (1.0) (1.6) (3.2)
RCI 3.1 2.C 7.4 7.1
Total $ 26.C $ 28.€ $ 73.7 $ 92.¢

Revenues are attributed to reporting segments lmas#te location of the customer.

37



Table of Contents

The following table summarizes our beverage casenwe by reporting segment for the three and ninathmended September 28, 2
and September 29, 2012, respectively:

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
(in millions of physical case September 28, 201 September 29, 201 September 28, 201 September 29, 201
Volume- 8 0z equivalent casesTotal Beverage
(including concentrate

North America 165.¢ 190.1 512.¢ 573.¢
United Kingdom 58.t 53.¢ 157.¢ 154.%
Mexico 4.t 6.4 14.2 19.C
RCI 64.1 77.5 194.¢ 220.2
Total 292.¢ 327.¢ 879.: 967.¢
Volume— 8 oz equivalent cas+ Filled Beverage

North America 146.¢ 167.: 451.¢ 505.¢
United Kingdom 55.¢ 50.t 145.¢ 143.1
Mexico 4.5 6.4 14.2 19.C
RCI 0.4 0.3 0.€ 0.3
Total 207.¢ 224k 612.¢ 668.(

The following tables summarize revenue and volugnprbduct for the three and nine months ended &dpe 28, 2013 and
September 29, 2012, respectively:

For the Three Months Ended September 28, 201

North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenut
Carbonated soft drink $ 1481 $ 467 $ 24 $— $ 197.:
Juice 117. 11.2 0.1 0.t 129.2
Concentratt 2.€ 0.t — 7.1 10.5
All other products 114.¢ 84.t 5.C 1.¢ 206.3
Total $ 383.: $142¢ $ 7.5 $9E $ 543.C

For the Three Months Ended September 28, 201

North United
(in millions of physical case America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Volume- 8 0z equivalent cas— Total Beverage (including concentra
Carbonated soft drink 67.1 23. 14 0.1 92.C
Juice 27.C 2.5 — 0.2 29.7
Concentratt 18.4 2.7 — 63.7 84.¢
All other products 52.¢ 29.¢ 3.1 0.1 85.€
Total 165.¢ 58.t 4.t 64.1 292.¢

For the Nine Months Ended September 28, 201

North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenu
Carbonated soft drink $ 4566 $119.. $ 9€ $02 $ 585.¢
Juice 376.¢ 19.¢€ 0.1 1.¢ 398.7
Concentratt 8.8 1.7 — 21.2 31.7
All other products 352.¢ 227.2 12.€ 3.7 596.2
Total $1,194.¢ $368.. $22.¢ $27.C $1,612.
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For the Nine Months Ended September 28, 201

North United
(in millions of physical case America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Volume— 8 0z equivalent cas— Total Beverage (including concentra
Carbonated soft drink 206.( 61.1 5.¢ 0.2 273.2
Juice 86.t 4.8 0.1 04 91.¢
Concentratt 61.t 11.t — 193.¢ 266.¢
All other products 158.¢ 80.C 8.2 .3 247 .4
Total 512.¢ 157.¢ 14.2 194.¢ 879.:
For the Three Months Ended September 29, 201
North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenu
Carbonated soft drink $ 182 $ 431 $51 $ 032 $ 230«
Juice 133.i 3.7 0.3 04 138.1
Concentratt 3.3 0.t — 8.5 12.:
All other products 120.( 78.2 4.3 0.1 202.¢
Total $ 439.¢ $1255 $ 97 $ 9.2 $ 583.¢
For the Three Months Ended September 29, 201
North United
(in millions of physical case America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Volume- 8 0z equivalent cas— Total Beverage (including concentra
Carbonated soft drink 77.C 22.1 3.7 0.1 103.t
Juice 30.1 1.C 04 0.2 31.7
Concentratt 22.¢ 34 — 7.2 103.¢
All other products 60.2 26.¢ 2.3 — 89.3
Total 190.] 53.¢ 6.4 77.% 327.¢
For the Nine Months Ended September 29, 201
North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenut
Carbonated soft drink $ 533.¢ $121.¢ $164 $ 0.2 % 671.¢
Juice 406.¢ 10.t 0.7 1.1 419.2
Concentratt 9.€ 1.8 — 23.€ 35.C
All other products 373.C 222.] 11.€ 0.1 607.4
Total $1,323.. $356.2 $29.C $ 25.1 $1,733.
For the Nine Months Ended September 29, 201
North United
(in millions of physical case America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Volume- 8 0z equivalent case Total Beverage (including concentra
Carbonated soft drink 235.2 63.¢ 11.€ 0.1 310.7
Juice 92.¢ 2.8 0.7 0.2 96.5
Concentratt 68.: 11.¢ — 219.¢ 299.¢
All other products 177.¢ 76.5 6.7 — 261.(
Total 573.¢ 154t 19.C 220.2 967.€
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Results of operations

The following tables summarize the change in reedmureporting segment for the three and nine nwatided September 28, 2013

September 29, 2012, respectively:

For the Three Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. dollars

September 28, 201.

North United
Cott America Kingdom Mexico RCI
Change in revenue $(40.€) $ (56.0) $ 174 $ (2.2 $0.2
Impact of foreign exchanc! 4.9 2.C 2.6 (0.2 —
Change excluding foreign exchar $(35.€ $ (54.0 $ 20.2 $ (2.9 $0.2
Percentage change in revet —7.C% -12.7% 13.€% —22.7% 2.2%
Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignasgz —6.1% -12.2% 16.2% —24.1% 2.2%
For the Nine Months Ended
(in millions of U.S. dollars September 28, 201
North United
Cott America Kingdom Mexico RCI
Change in revenue $(121.0) $(128.5) $ 12. $ (6.9) $1.¢
Impact of foreign exchanc! 9.2 2.¢ 7.2 (1.0 —
Change excluding foreign exchar $(111.9 $(125.6) $ 19.2 $ (7.9 $1.¢
Percentage change in revet —7.C% -9.7% 3.4% —22.1% 7.€%
Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignasgz —6.4% —9.5% 5.4% —25.5% 7.€%

1 Impact of foreign exchange is the difference leetvthe current year's revenue translated utilifiregcurrent year’s average foreign
exchange rates to date less the currenf's revenue translated utilizing the prior y's average foreign exchange ra

For the Three Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. dollars

September 29, 201

North United
Cott America Kingdom Mexico RCI
Change in revenue $(27.5 $ (28.§) $ 1.C $ (3.0 $ 3.3
Impact of foreign exchanc! 5.E 1.€ 2.¢ 1.C —
Change excluding foreign exchar $(22.0 $ (27.2) $ 3¢ $ (2.0 $ 3.3
Percentage change in revet -4.5% —6.2% 0.8% —23.€% 55.(%
Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignasgz -3.6% -5.8% 3.1% -15.7% 55.(%
For the Nine Months Ended
(in millions of U.S. dollars September 29, 201
North United
Cott America Kingdom Mexico RCI
Change in revenue $(52.0) $ (65.7) $ 19.4 $(11.9) $ 5.C
Impact of foreign exchang! 17.2 5.C 8.3 3.6 —
Change excluding foreign exchar $(34.9) $ (60.7) $ 277 $ (7.9 $ 5.C
Percentage change in revet —2.5% -4.7% 5.8% —28.(% 24.%%
Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignaagz -1.% —4.2% 8.2% —18.4% 24.%
1 Impact of foreign exchange is the difference leetvthe current year's revenue translated utilifiregcurrent year’s average foreign

exchange rates to date less the currenf's revenue translated utilizing the prior y's average foreign exchange ra
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The following table summarizes our EBITDA and Adpgs EBITDA for the three and nine months ended &aper 28, 2013 and
September 29, 2012, respectively.

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
September 2¢  September 2¢  September 2  September 2¢

(in millions of U.S. dollars 2013 2012 2013 2012
Net income attributed to Cott Corporation $ 12 $ 145 $ 28t % 45k
Interest expense, n 13.2 13.1 39.4 40.€
Income tax expens 0.1 1.2 2.3 5.2
Depreciation & amortizatio 25.1 24 740 72.2
Net income attributable to n-controlling interest: 1.3 1.3 3.6 3.4
EBITDA $ 51.¢ $ 54¢ $ 148.¢ $ 167.2
Restructuring — — 2.C —
Foreign regulatory adjustmer 0.5 — 0.t —
Acquisition adjustment

Inventory ste-up 0.7 — 1.C 0.1

Acquisition costs 0.1 — 1.€ —

Integration cost 0.4 1.3 0.4 3.1
Adjusted EBITDA $ 53t §$ 56.1 $ 154.F $ 170.4

The following table summarizes our adjusted nebine and adjusted earnings per share for the tméaiae months ended
September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, resggcti

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
September 2¢  September 2¢  September 2  September 2¢

(in millions of U.S. dollars 2013 2012 2013 2012
Net income attributed to Cott Corporation $ 12 % 145 $ 28t $ 455
Restructuring, net of ta — — 1.6 —
Foreign regulatory adjustments, net of 0.5 — 0.5 —
Acquisition adjustments, net of ti
Inventory ste-up 0.t — 0.8 0.1
Acquisition costs 0.1 — 1.4 —
Integration cost 0.4 1.3 0.4 3.1
Adjusted net income attributed to Cott Corporation $ 135 § 15.¢ $ 33 % 48.7
Adjusted net income per common share attributed td&Cott
Corporation
Basic $ 014 $ 017 $ 03t % 0.52
Diluted $ 014 $ 0.17 $ 0.3 $ 0.51
Weighted average outstanding shares (millions) atitouted to Cott
Corporation
Basic 94.2 94.t 94.¢ 94.t
Diluted 94.¢ 95.€ 95.¢ 95.€

The following unaudited financial information fdret three and nine months ended September 28, 2pi&sents the activity of Calyp
Soft Drinks that has been combined with our UnKéaydom operations as of the date of acquisition.

For the Three Months Endec For the Nine Months Endec

(in millions of U.S. dollars
Revenue

September 28, 201. September 28, 201.

United Kingdom $ 142.¢ $ 368.:
Less: Calypso Soft Drink (15.9) (19.9
United Kingdom excluding Calypso Soft Drir $ 127.2 $ 348.:
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The following table summarizes our free cash flowthe three and nine months ended September 28,&0d September 29, 2012,
respectively.

For the Three Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. dollars September 28, 201 September 29, 201
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 87.4 $ 58.(
Less: Capital expenditur (10.29) (13.9)
Free Cash Flow $ 77.2 $ 44.¢
For the Nine Months Ended

September 28, 201 September 29, 201

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 62.¢ $ 53.(
Less: Capital expenditur (44.9) (50.6)
Free Cash Flow $ 18.2 $ 2.4

Revenue- Revenue decreased $40.6 million or 7.0% and $12illion or 7.0% in the third quarter and yeadtde, respectively, from
the comparable prior year periods. Excluding thpaot of foreign exchange, revenue decreased 6.1%.4#6 in the third quarter and yeal
date, respectively, from the comparable prior yeaiods.

North America revenue decreased $56.0 million o7%®2and $128.5 million or 9.7% in the third quaded year to date, respectively,
from the comparable prior year periods due prirgddla 12.2% and 10.7% decrease in beverage casmedn the third quarter and year to
date, respectively, from the comparable prior yeaiods. Net selling price per beverage case (wisictet revenue divided by beverage case
volume) decreased 0.6% and increased 1.1% in ttegharter and year to date, respectively, fromabmparable prior year periods. The
declines were primarily due to the general marlkelfide in the North American carbonated soft difftkSD”) category and increased
promotional activity from the national brands inrtfoAmerica.

U.K. revenue increased $17.4 million or 13.9% ah®.§ million or 3.4% in the third quarter and y&adate, respectively, from the
comparable prior year periods. Absent foreign ergleampact, U.K. revenue increased 16.2% and 5m#htel third quarter and year to date,
respectively. Excluding the revenues associateld @atlypso, U.K. revenue increased $1.7 million dedreased $7.9 million in the third
quarter and year to date, respectively, primarilg tb the good weather experienced in the thirdtquaffset in part by narrowing price gaps
associated with national brands, particularly & ¢émergy and sports drink categories as well asyeather experienced during the first half
of the year.

Mexico revenue decreased $2.2 million or 22.7%%td million or 22.1% in the third quarter and y&adate, respectively, from the
comparable prior year periods due primarily toaRiing of low gross margin business offset in fgrta 10.0% and 4.3% increase in net
selling price per beverage case in the third quartd year to date, respectively. Absent foreigrhange impact, Mexico revenue decreased
24.7% and 25.5% in the third quarter and year te,daspectively.

RCI revenue increased $0.2 million or 2.2% and $dillon or 7.6% in the third quarter and year ttel respectively, from the
comparable prior year periods due primarily to sdimsiness wins and an increase in average priceaser

Cost of Sales- Cost of sales represented 88.0% and 87.7% ofivevia the third quarter and year to date, respalgticompared to
87.5% and 86.8% in the comparable prior year peridtie increase in cost of sales as a percentageafue in the periods was due
primarily to unfavorable fixed cost absorption agated with lower global volumes.

Gross Profit— Gross profit as a percentage of revenue decreéaseti0% and 12.3% in the third quarter and yealate, respectively,
from 12.5% and 13.2% in the comparable prior yesiogls due primarily to lower global volumes whielsulted in unfavorable fixed cost
absorption.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpensesSG&A expenses decreased $5.9 million or 13.5%$413d5 million or 10.0% in the
third quarter and year to date, respectively, ftbencomparable prior year periods. The decreaseluaprimarily to lower employee related
expenses, reduced information technology costgpesfdssional fees, and reduced bad debt resenaesassilt of lower revenues combined
with higher historical collection rates, offsetgart by increased consulting costs associatedaeijuisitions during the year. As a percentage
of revenue, SG&A expenses decreased to 7.0% afalin.Ehe third quarter and year to date, respelgtiveom 7.5% and 7.8% in the
comparable prior year periods, respectively.
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Operating Income- Operating income was $26.0 million and $73.7iomlin the third quarter and year to date, respebtj compared
to $28.6 million and $92.8 million, respectively,the comparable prior year periods. The decreaieeiperiods was due to lower gross pi
as a percentage of revenue partially offset by IdS@&A.

Other (Income) Expense Other income was $0.7 million and $0.4 milliortle third quarter and year to date, respectivaynpared
to other income of $1.5 million and $2.2 millioespectively, in the comparable prior year peridds primarily to insurance recoveries in
excess of the loss incurred on a U.S. facilityhi@ &amount of $1.3 million recorded in the third derof the prior year and recording a barg
purchase of $0.9 million in the U.K. in the secajuérter of the prior year, offset by foreign exapaeffects associated with each period.

Income Taxes- Income tax expense was $0.1 million and $2.3enilin the third quarter and year to date, respebtj compared to an
expense of $1.2 million and $5.5 million, respeglyy in the comparable prior year periods. The elase was due primarily to the reductiol
pretax income.

Liquidity and Financial Condition

The following table summarizes our cash flows fa three and nine months ended September 28, 2@llSeptember 29, 2012,
respectively, as reported in our Consolidated 8tatds of Cash Flows in the accompanying Consolitlaieancial Statements:

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
(in millions of U.S. dollars September 28, 201 September 29, 201 September 28, 201 September 29, 201
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 87.4 $ 58.C $ 62.¢ $ 53.(
Net cash used in investing activiti (16.¢) (15.9 (59.9 (61.0
Net cash used in financing activiti (12.9 3.9 (54.9 (7.€)
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 1.3 2.2 (2.3 2.8
Net increase (decrease) in cash & cash equive 59.C 41.C (53.€ (12.¢)
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of pel 66.€ 47.1 179.¢ 100.¢
Cash & cash equivalents, end of petr $ 125.6 $ 88.1 $ 125.6 $ 88.1

Financial and Capital Resources and Liquidity

As of September 28, 2013, we had total debt of #668llion and $125.8 million of cash and cash eglénts compared to $606.1
million of debt and $88.1 million of cash and casjuivalents as of September 29, 2012.

We believe that our level of resources, which idelsicash on hand, available borrowings under aatdmsed lending credit facility
(the “ABL facility”) and funds provided by operatis, will be adequate to meet our expenses, capip@nditures, and debt service
obligations for the next twelve months. We haventaned adequate liquidity to meet current worlkdagital requirements, fund capital
expenditures and make scheduled principal anddst@ayments on debt. Absent deterioration of maxdeditions, we believe that cash
flows from operating activities and financing adtas will provide adequate resources to satisfykivg capital, scheduled principal and
interest payments on debt, and anticipated cagi@dnsion requirements for both short-term and-teng capital needs, as well as the
payment of future dividends. For periods extendiagond twelve months, we believe that our abilitgénerate cash to meet our expenses
and debt service obligations and to otherwise redut debt as anticipated will depend primarilyoom ability to retain a substantial amount
of volume from our key customers and maintain tfadifability of our business. If we do not have egb cash to pay our debt service
obligations, or if the ABL facility, the 8.375% sennotes that are due on November 15, 2017 (tb&72Notes”), or the 8.125% senior notes
that are due on September 1, 2018 (the “2018 Nptesie to become currently due, either at matumitgs a result of a breach, we may be
required to take actions such as amending our Afllify or the indentures governing our 2017 Naiad 2018 Notes, refinancing all or part
of our existing debt, selling assets, incurringiiddal indebtedness or raising equity. If we néedeek additional financing, there is no
assurance that this additional financing will baikable on favorable terms or at all.

Should we desire to consummate significant acgoisiipportunities or undertake significant expansgtivities, our capital needs
would increase and could result in a need for uadke borrowings under or increase the size ofA@lr facility or access public or private
debt and equity market



On October 22, 2013, we amended the ABL facilityatmong other things, provide for an increase énléimders’ commitments under
the ABL facility to $300 million, and to provide feertain adjustments to the PP&E Component (aselin the ABL facility) of the
borrowing base. Our total availability under the lABcility was $282.5 million, which was based amr dorrowing base (accounts
receivables, inventory, and fixed assets) delivéoetie lenders on October 22, 2013 in connectiith such amendment, and we had no
outstanding borrowings under the ABL facility and%million in outstanding letters of credit. Asessult, our excess availability under the

ABL facility was $275.0 million. Each month’s bomwing base is not effective until submitted to theders, which usually occurs on the
fifteenth day of the following month.
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We earned approximately 100% of our consolidateztating income in subsidiaries located outside arfigia during the first nine
months of 2013. All of these foreign earnings amasidered to be indefinitely reinvested in forejarisdictions where we have made, and
continue to make, substantial investments to sugperongoing development and growth of our intéamal operations. Accordingly, no
Canadian income taxes have been provided for aetfigeign earnings. Cash and cash equivalentsblyaddr foreign subsidiaries are reau
convertible into other foreign currencies, inclgli@anadian dollars. We do not intend, nor do wesee a need, to repatriate these funds.

We expect existing domestic cash, cash equivaleash flows from operations and the issuance ofedtimdebt to continue to be
sufficient to fund our domestic operating, invegtand financing activities. In addition, we expexisting foreign cash, cash equivalents, and
cash flows from operations to continue to be sigfitto fund our foreign operating and investing\aiies.

In the future, should we require more capital todfgignificant discretionary activities in Canabart is generated by our domestic
operations and is available through the issuanc®wfestic debt or stock, we could elect to rep@tifiature periods’ earnings from foreign
jurisdictions. This alternative could result inighrer effective tax rate during the period of rejagion. While the likelihood is remote, v
could also elect to repatriate earnings from fargigisdictions that have previously been considdoebe indefinitely reinvested. Upon
distribution of those earnings in the form of dimmdls or otherwise, we may be subject to additi@aaladian income taxes and withholding
taxes payable to various foreign jurisdictions, vehapplicable. This alternative could result inghler effective tax rate in the period in wh
such a determination is made to repatriate pricogdoreign earnings.

We may, from time to time, depending on market @ios, including without limitation whether the D Notes or 2018 Notes are tt
trading at discounts to their respective face artguapurchase the 2017 Notes or 2018 Notes fdr @ad/or in exchange for shares of our
common stock, warrants, preferred stock, debtleratonsideration, in each case in open markehpses and/or privately negotiated
transactions. The amounts involved in any suchstretions, individually or in aggregate, may be mateHowever, the covenants in our A
facility subject such purchases to certain limitai and conditions.

On September 30, 2013, Cott Beverages Inc. nofifietls Fargo Bank, National Association, as suamesastee to HSBC Bank USA,
N.A. under the indenture dated as of November 0892joverning the 2017 Notes (“Indenture”),that Cott Beverages Inc. will, pursuan
the optional redemption provisions contained inltidenture, redeem U.S. $200.0 million aggregaiteciral amount of the 2017 Notes on
November 15, 2013 at 104.118% of par. The redemptitl include approximately $8 million in premiupayments as well as approximat
$4 million in deferred financing fee and discounhaiges.

Operating activities

Cash provided by operating activities was $62.9ionilyear to date compared to $53.0 million in toenparable prior year period. The
$9.9 million increase was due primarily to a redrcin inventories and other assets partially dffgea reduction in net income.

Investing activities

Cash used in investing activities was $59.3 milljear to date compared to $61.0 million in the caraple prior year period. The $1.7
million decrease was due primarily to decreasedtaagxpenditures, partially offset by an increasacquisition related payments.

Financing activities

Cash used in financing activities was $54.9 millj@ar to date compared to $7.6 million in the corapke prior year period. The $47.3
million increase was due primarily to payment afdderm debt and the repurchase of common shadetharpayment of dividends to
shareholders. In connection with the Calypso Soiftk3 Acquisition we paid off outstanding debt bétacquired companies of $18.5 million
upon purchase.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We had no off-balance sheet arrangements as defimde Item 303(a)(4) of Regulation S-K as of Seyiter 28, 2013.

Contractual Obligations
We have no material changes to the disclosureismthtter made in our 2012 Annual Report.
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Debt
Asse-Based Lending Credit Facility

On March 31, 2008, we entered into a credit agre¢mih JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. as Agent thattecean ABL facility to provid
financing for our North America, U.K. and Mexicqoating segments. In connection with the Cliffsdaiquisition, we refinanced the ABL
facility on August 17, 2010 to, among other thingsvide for the Cliffstar Acquisition, the issua&nof the 2018 Notes and the application of
net proceeds therefrom, the underwritten publieraffy of 13,340,000 common shares at a price &/&per share and the application of net
proceeds therefrom and to increase the amountaé@ifor borrowings to $275.0 million. We drew dowportion of the indebtedness under
the ABL facility in order to fund the Cliffstar Aeggition. We incurred $5.4 million of financing feé connection with the refinancing of the
ABL facility.

On July 19, 2012, we amended the ABL facility tmamg other things, extend the maturity date toeeiftuly 19, 2017 or, if we have t
redeemed, repurchased or refinanced the 2017 Kptekay 1, 2017, May 15, 2017. We incurred $1.2 ianllof financing fees in connection
with the amendment of the ABL facility.

On October 22, 2013, we amended the ABL facilityatmong other things, (1) provide for an increasthé lenders’ commitments
under the ABL facility to $300 million, as well &mcrease to the accordion feature, which permit®uscrease the lenders’ commitments
under the ABL facility to $350 million, subject tertain conditions, (2) extend the maturity datéhwearliest of (i) October 22, 2018,

(i) May 15, 2017, if we have not redeemed, repasg or refinanced the 2017 Notes by May 1, 20d{#ijoMarch 1, 2018, if we have not
redeemed, repurchased or refinanced the 2018 gtEsbruary 15, 2018, and (3) provide for gredeilbility under certain covenants. We
incurred approximately $0.6 million of financingefein connection with the amendment of the ABLIfgci

The financing fees incurred in connection with tenancing of the ABL facility on August 17, 2018lpng with the financing fees
incurred in connection with the amendment of the A&cility on July 19, 2012 and on October 22, 204@ being amortized using the
straight line method over the duration of the aneehdBL facility.

As of September 28, 2013, we had no outstandingtimgs under the ABL facility. The commitment f@as 0.375% per annum of
unused commitment, which, taking into account $iilion of letters of credit, was $239.0 million aéSeptember 28, 2013.

8.375% Senior Notes due in 2017

On November 13, 2009, we issued $215.0 milliorhef2017 Notes. The 2017 Notes were issued at an$iBidn discount. The issuer
of the 2017 Notes is our wholly-owned U.S. subsidi@ott Beverages Inc., and we and most of our \C8nadian and U.K. subsidiaries
guarantee the 2017 Notes. The interest on the R@1&5s is payable semi-annually on Mayti&nd November 1% of each year.

We incurred $5.1 million of financing fees in cootien with the 2017 Notes. The financing fees amd amortized using the effective
interest method over an eight-year period, whighesents the duration of the 2017 Notes.

On September 30, 2013, Cott Beverages Inc. nofifietls Fargo Bank, National Association, as suamessstee to HSBC Bank USA,
N.A. under the Indenture, that Cott Beverageswilt, pursuant to the optional redemption provisaontained in the Indenture, redeem |
$200.0 million aggregate principal amount of th& 20otes on November 15, 2013 at 104.118% of gee.rédemption will include
approximately $8 million in premium payments ashaslapproximately $4 million in deferred financifeg and discount charges.

8.125% Senior Notes due in 2018

On August 17, 2010, we issued $375.0 million of20&8 Notes. The issuer of the 2018 Notes is owllydowned U.S. subsidiary Cott
Beverages Inc., and we and most of our U.S., Canaalid U.K. subsidiaries guarantee the 2018 N@tesinterest on the 2018 Notes is
payable semi-annually on Marchtand Septemberstof each year.

We incurred $8.6 million of financing fees in cootien with the 2018 Notes. The financing fees amd amortized using the effective
interest method over an eight-year period, whighesents the duration of the 2018 Notes.

GE Term Loan

In January 2008, we entered into a capital leamntie arrangement with General Electric Capitap@a@tion (“GE Capital”) for the
lease of equipment. In September 2013, we purchiseglquipment subject to the lease for an aggeggathase price of $10.7 million, with
the financing for such purchase provided by Gerladtric at 5.23% interest.
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Credit Ratings and Covenant Compliance
Credit Ratings

We have no material changes to the disclosureismthtter made in our 2012 Annual Report.

Covenant Compliance
8.375% Senior Notes due in 2017

Under the indenture governing the 2017 Notes, wesabject to a number of covenants, including camenthat limit our and certain of
our subsidiariesability, subject to certain exceptions and quadifions, to (i) pay dividends or make distributioregurchase equity securiti
prepay subordinated debt or make certain invessnéijtincur additional debt or issue certain dialified stock or preferred stock, (iii) cre:
or incur liens on assets securing indebtednegsim@rge or consolidate with another company oradktir substantially all of our assets taken
as a whole, (v) enter into transactions with &fféis and (vi) sell assets. We have been in congdiaith all of the covenants under the 2017
Notes and there have been no amendments to anysuehants since the 2017 Notes were iss

8.125% Senior Notes due in 2018

Under the indenture governing the 2018 Notes, wesabject to a number of covenants, including camenthat limit our and certain of
our subsidiariesability, subject to certain exceptions and quadifions, to (i) pay dividends or make distributioregurchase equity securiti
prepay subordinated debt or make certain invessnéijtincur additional debt or issue certain dialified stock or preferred stock, (iii) cre:
or incur liens on assets securing indebtednegsim@rge or consolidate with another company oradetir substantially all of our assets taken
as a whole, (v) enter into transactions with &fféis and (vi) sell assets. We have been in congdiaith all of the covenants under the 2018
Notes and there have been no amendments to anysuehants since the 2018 Notes were iss

ABL Facility

Under the credit agreement governing the ABL figilCott and its restricted subsidiaries are suhia number of business and
financial covenants, including a covenant requiamminimum fixed charge coverage ratio of at Idastto 1.0 effective when and if excess
availability is less than the greater of 10% of ldreders’ commitments under the ABL facility or $3nillion. If excess availability is less
than the greater of 12.5% of the lenders’ committsiender the ABL facility or $37.5 million, the léars will take dominion over the cash
and will apply excess cash to reduce amounts owugr the facility. We were in compliance with @fithe applicable covenants under the
ABL facility as of September 28, 2013.
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Issuer Purchases of Securitie
Common Share Repurchase Program

On May 1, 2012, our board of directors authorizesirepurchase of up to $35.0 million of our comrsbares in the open market or
through privately negotiated transactions over-anbth period through either a 10b5-1 automatiditrg plan or at management’s discretion
in compliance with regulatory requirements, ancegimarket, cost and other considerations.

On April 30, 2013, our board of directors renewed share repurchase program for up to 5% of Cotitstanding common shares over
a 12month period commencing upon the expiration ofghier share repurchase program on May 21, 2013r&ferchased 554,769 share
common stock for approximately $4.5 million durithg third quarter ended September 28, 2013 uneéestthre repurchase program through
open market transactions. We are unable to prédéatumber of shares that ultimately will be repased under the share repurchase
program, or the aggregate dollar amount of theeshactually purchased. We may discontinue purchatsasy time, subject to compliance
with applicable regulatory requirements.

Capital Structure

Since December 29, 2012, our equity has increag&®I8 million. The increase was the result ofinebme of $28.5 million and share-
based compensation expense of $3.6 million, offgetividends declared of $16.7 million, share repases of $10.0 million, and other
comprehensive loss of $4.6 million.

Dividend Payments

The board of directors has declared a quarterlgleihd of CAD$0.06 per common share in each ofltheet completed quarters of 20
On October 29, 2013, our board of directors dedlardividend of CAD$0.06 per common share, payabtash on December 12, 2013 to
shareowners of record at the close of businessemeiber 2, 2013. Cott intends to pay a regulartgupdividend on its common shares
subject to, among other things, the best interfsts shareowners, Cott’s results of operatioashdialances and future cash requirements,
financial condition, statutory regulations and auaets set forth in the ABL facility and indentugesverning the 2017 Notes and 2018 Notes,
as well as other factors that our board of directoay deem relevant from time to time.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our critical accounting policies require managemenhake estimates and assumptions that affecefierted amounts in the
consolidated financial statements and the acconmipgmptes. These estimates are based on histesipakience, the advice of external
experts or other assumptions that management kslievbe reasonable. Where actual amounts differ &stimates, revisions are included in
the results for the period in which actual amoulr@some known. Historically, differences betweeingstes and actual amounts have not had
a significant impact on our consolidated finansialtements.

Critical accounting policies and estimates usegrépare the financial statements are discussedowitudit Committee as they are
implemented and on an annual basis.

We have no material changes to our Critical AccimgnPolicies and Estimates disclosure as filedun2D12 Annual Report.

Forward-looking Statements

In addition to historical information, this reponay contain statements relating to future evendsfature results. These statements are
“forward-looking” within the meaning of the Privagecurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and applile Canadian securities legislation
and involve known and unknown risks, uncertaintieijre expectations and other factors that mageaatual results, performance or
achievements of Cott Corporation to be materialffecent from any future results, performance dniagements expressed or implied by s
forward-looking statements. Such statements inglhdeare not limited to, statements that relatprigections of sales, earnings, earnings per
share, cash flows, capital expenditures or otmamitial items, discussions of estimated futuremegeenhancements and cost savings. These
statements also relate to our business strategys gad expectations concerning our market posifidore operations, margins, profitability,
liquidity and capital resources. Generally, wordstsas “anticipate,” “believe,” “continue,” “could)endeavor,” “estimate,” “expect,”

“intend,” “may,” “will,” “plan,” “predict,” “project,” “should” and similar terms and phrases are usddentify forward-looking statements in
this report and in the documents incorporated igrieport by reference. These forward-looking stegets reflect current expectations
regarding future events and operating performandesae made only as of the date of this report.

The forward-looking statements are not guarantéésgture performance or events and, by their natare based on certain estimates
and assumptions regarding interest and foreignamgdh rates, expected growth, results of operatpmréprmance, business prospects and
opportunities and effective income tax rates, wiaigh subject to inherent risks and uncertaintiesteMal
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factors or assumptions that were applied in drawailegnclusion or making an estimate set out in émdalooking statements may include, but
are not limited to, assumptions regarding managé&meurrent plans and estimates, our ability toaena low cost supplier, and effective
management of commodity costs. Although we belteeeassumptions underlying these forward-lookiageshents are reasonable, any of
these assumptions could prove to be inaccuratesanal result, the forward-looking statements baseithose assumptions could prove to be
incorrect. Our operations involve risks and ungatigs, many of which are outside of our contraold @any one or any combination of these
risks and uncertainties could also affect whetherforward-looking statements ultimately prove éocorrect. These risks and uncertainties
include, but are not limited to, those describeBanmt I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in our 2012 AnniRéport, and those described from time to
time in our future reports filed with the Secustiend Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and Canadiarnrgesuregulatory authorities.

The following are some of the factors that couli@etfour financial performance, including but niatited to, sales, earnings and cash
flows, or could cause actual results to differ matly from estimates contained in or underlying forward-looking statements:

» our ability to compete successfully in the highympetitive beverage catego

» changes in consumer tastes and preferencesifiing products and our ability to develop amdetiy launch new products that
appeal to such changing consumer tastes and pneés;

» loss of or a reduction in business with key custangarticularly Walmari

« fluctuations in commaodity prices and our akitib pass on increased costs to our customergharichpact of those increased
prices on our volume:

e our ability to manage our operations successf

» currency fluctuations that adversely affectétxehange between the U.S. dollar and the Brit@singd sterling, the Euro, the
Canadian dollar, the Mexican peso and other cuigsr

* our ability to maintain favorable arrangements egldtionships with our supplier
» our substantial indebtedness we incurred and dlityatb meet our obligations
e our ability to maintain compliance with the covetsaand conditions under our debt agreeme
» fluctuations in interest rate
» credit rating change:
» the impact of global financial events on our finahcesults;
e our ability to fully realize the expected cost s@s and/or operating efficiencies from our restitingy activities;
e any disruption to production at our beverage cotraées or other manufacturing facilitie
e our ability to protect our intellectual proper
» compliance with product health and safety stand:
» liability for injury or illness caused by the comsption of contaminated produc
» liability and damage to our reputation as a restlitigation or legal proceeding
» changes in the legal and regulatory environmenthith we operate
» the impact of proposed taxes on soda and othensdgaks;
» enforcement of compliance with the Ontario Enviremtal Protection Act
* unseasonably cold or wet weather, which could redignand for our beverags
» the impact of national, regional and global evemisluding those of a political, economic, businasd competitive natur
e our ability to recruit, retain, and integrate newrmagement
* our exposure to intangible asset ri
» our ability to renew our collective bargaining agreents on satisfactory tern
» disruptions in our information systems;
» volatility of our stock price
We undertake no obligation to update any infornmationtained in this report or to publicly reledse tesults of any revisions to

forward-looking statements to reflect events ocwinstances of which we may become aware of aféeddite of this report. Undue reliance
should not be placed on forwi-looking statements, and all future written and éoalvarc-looking statements attributable to us or pers



acting on our behalf are expressly qualified irirteatirety by the foregoing.
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ltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

We do not trade market risk sensitive instruments.

Currency Exchange Rate Risk

Our North America and U.K. reporting segments paseha portion of their inventory for our Canadiad &European operations,
respectively, through transactions denominatedsatited in U.S. dollars and Euros, respectivelyremcies different from the functional
currency of those operations. These inventory mseb are subject to exposure from movements iraegehrates. We use foreign exchange
forward contracts to hedge operational exposuradtiag from changes in these foreign currency erge rates. The intent of the foreign
exchange contracts is to provide predictabilitpim overall cost structure. These foreign excharmgeracts, carried at fair value, have
maturities of less than one year. As of SeptemBeP@13, we had outstanding foreign exchange fatwantracts with notional amounts of
$5.5 million.

Debt Obligations and Interest Rates

We have exposure to interest rate risk from thetantling principal amounts of our short-term amdyiterm debt. Our longerm debt i
fixed and our short-term debt is variable. Our Afatility is vulnerable to fluctuations in the U $hort-term base rate and the LIBOR rate. At
current debt levels as of September 28, 2013, &&6i3 point increase in the current per annunmaataate for our ABL facility (excluding
the $7.5 million outstanding letters of credit) Mebresult in less than $0.1 million of additionatérest expense during the next year. This
change would not be material to our cash flowsusresults of operations. The weighted-averageésteate of our debt outstanding at
September 28, 2013 was 8.2%.

Commodity Price Risk

We have no material changes to the disclosureismthtter made in our 2012 Annual Report.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and phaes as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15¢hedSecurities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). The Camijsamanagement, under the supervision and witlp#gcipation of the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officearried out an evaluation of the effectivenesthefdesign and operation of the
Company'’s disclosure controls and procedures &epfember 28, 2013. Based upon this evaluatiorCdmepany’s Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as ept®@mber 28, 2013, the Company’s disclosure can#notl procedures are functioning
effectively to ensure that information required®disclosed by the Company in reports filed omsitted under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported vithitime periods specified in SEC rules and forans, accumulated and communicated
to the Company’s management, including the Comma@¥iief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officto allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

In addition, our management carried out an evalnats required by Rule 13a-15(d) of the Exchangfe With the participation of our
Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial io#fr, of changes in our internal control over fio@hreporting. Based on this evaluation,
the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Finan€Mficer concluded that there have been no chaimgesr internal control over financial
reporting during our most recent fiscal quartet treve materially affected, or are reasonably Yikelmaterially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.

PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Reference is made to the legal proceedings deskiribeur 2012 Annual Report.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There has been no material change in our risk fasioce December 29, 2012. Please refer to ol 2dhual Report for a detailed
description of our risk factors.
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use Bfoceeds

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

On May 1, 2012, our board of directors authorizezirepurchase of up to $35.0 million of our comrabares in the open market or
through privately negotiated transactions over-anbth period through either a 10b5-1 automatiditrg plan or at management’s discretion

in compliance with regulatory requirements, ancegimarket, cost and other considerations.

On April 30, 2013, our board of directors renewed share repurchase program for up to 5% of Cotitstanding common shares over
a 12month period commencing upon the expiration ofghier share repurchase program on May 21, 2013r&ferchased 554,769 share
common stock for approximately $4.5 million durithg third quarter ended September 28, 2013 uneéestthre repurchase program through

open market transactions. We are unable to prédéatumber of shares that ultimately will be repased under the share repurchase

program, or the aggregate dollar amount of theeshactually purchased. We may discontinue purchatsasy time, subject to compliance

with applicable regulatory requirements.

The following table summarizes the repurchases radeg the third quarter of 2013:

Total Number of

Shares of
Common Stock
Period Purchased
July 2013 553,86
August 2017 90C
September 201 —
Total 554,76¢

Average
Price Paid
per Share o

Common
Stock

$ 8.0¢
8.4¢

$ 8.0¢
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Total Number of Share:

of Common Stock
Purchased as Part of
Publicly Announced
Plans or Programs

553,86
90C

554,76

Maximum Number of
Shares of Common
Stock that May Yet Be

Purchased Under the
Plans or Programs

3,529,05!
3,528,15
3,528,15.
3,528,15
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Number

3.1

3.2

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

101

Exhibits

Description

Articles of Amalgamation of Cott Corporation (inporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our FornKl@ated February 28,
2007).

Second Amended and Restated By-laws of Cott Cotiporéincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to #orm 10-Q filed
May 10, 2007)

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fab2he quarterly period
ended September 28, 2013 (filed herewi

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended September 28, 2013 (filed herewi

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended September 28, 2013 (furnished herew

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fa®d2he quarterly period
ended September 28, 2013 (furnished herew

The following financial statements from Cott Coration’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the qeaended September 28,
2013, filed on November 1, 2013, formatted in XBgIXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Cbdated Statements of
Operations, (ii) Condensed Consolidated Statenwr@®mprehensive Income, (iii) Consolidated BalaBbeets, (iv)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (v) Conatdd Statements of Equity, (vi) Notes to the Cadatéd Financial
Statements (filed herewitr
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caussdréport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

COTT CORPORATION
(Registrant’

Date: November 1, 2013 /sl Jay Wells
Jay Wells
Chief Financial Office
(On behalf of the Compan

Date: November 1, 2013 /sl Gregory Leite
Gregory Leitel
Senior Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer akakistant
Secretary
(Principal Accounting Officer
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Exhibit Index
Number Description
3.1 Articles of Amalgamation of Cott Corporation (inporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our FornKl@ated February 28,
2007).
3.2 Second Amended and Restated By-laws of Cott Catiporéincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to 8orm 10-(filed May
10, 2007).
31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fab2he quarterly period
ended September 28, 2013 (filed herewi
31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended September 28, 2013 (filed herewi
32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended September 28, 2013 (furnished herew
32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fa®d2he quarterly period
ended September 28, 2013 (furnished herew
101 The following financial statements from Cott Coration’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the qeaended September 28,

2013, filed on November 1, 2013, formatted in XBgIXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Cbdated Statements of
Operations, (ii) Condensed Consolidated Statenwr@®mprehensive Income, (iii) Consolidated BalaBbeets, (iv)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (v) Conatdd Statements of Equity, (vi) Notes to the Cadatéd Financial
Statements (filed herewitr
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBA NES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002.

I, Jerry Fowden, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Cott Corporation

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or don#tate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this ref

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presentet

this report;

4.  The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a)

b)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinégion relating to the registrant, including ithsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withase entities, particularly during the period inigh this report is
being preparec

Designed such internal control over financiglarting, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegdorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation;

Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrard’internal control over financial reportir
and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a)

b)

November 1, 201

All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; an

Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

/sl Jerry Fowdel
Jerry Fowder
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBA NES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002.

I, Jay Wells, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Cott Corporation

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or don#tate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this ref

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presentet

this report;

4.  The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a)

b)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinégion relating to the registrant, including ithsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withase entities, particularly during the period inigh this report is
being preparec

Designed such internal control over financiglarting, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegdorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation;

Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrard’internal control over financial reportir
and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a)

b)

November 1, 201

All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; an

Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

/sl Jay Wells
Jay Wells
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 ASADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, Jerry Fowden, Chief Executived®ffof Cott Corporation (the “Company”), has exeduhis certification in connection
with the filing with the Securities and Exchangen@nission of the Company’s Quarterly Report on F&¥Q for the quarter ended
September 28, 2013 (the “Report”).
The undersigned hereby certifies that to the bielsisctknowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@abition and results of operations of
the Company

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executisdctrtification as of the £day of November, 2013.

/sl Jerry Fowdel
Jerry Fowder
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 ASADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, Jay Wells, Chief Financial Offise€ott Corporation (the “Company”), has executad certification in connection with
the filing with the Securities and Exchange Commis®f the Company’s Quarterly Report on FormQ@er the quarter ended Septembel
2013 (the “Report”).
The undersigned hereby certifies that to the bielsiscknowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@abition and results of operations of
the Company

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executisdctrtification as of the £day of November, 2013.

/sl Jay Wells
Jay Wells
Chief Financial Office




